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Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Kentucky Housing Corporation  
Frankfort, Kentucky 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities and each major fund of the Kentucky Housing Corporation (the “Corporation”), a component unit 
of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Corporation’s basic financial statements as listed 
in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 
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2. 

Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund 
of the Corporation, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where 
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 14, the schedule of Corporation’s proportionate share of the 
net pension liability on page 52, the schedule of Corporation’s employer pension contributions on page 53, 
the schedule of the Corporation’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability on page 54, and the schedule 
of the Corporation’s employer OPEB contributions on page 55 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Corporation’s basic financial statements. The combining financial statements on pages 56 
through 59 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements.  
 
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining financial statements are 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.   
 



 

 
 
 

3. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 30, 
2020 on our consideration of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Corporation’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.   
 

 
Crowe LLP 
 

Louisville, Kentucky 
September 30, 2020
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Management’s discussion and analysis of Kentucky Housing Corporation’s (“Corporation”) financial 
performance provides an overview of the Corporation’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2020.  It should be read in conjunction with the Corporation’s financial statements. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 

 Company-wide net position increased $37.4 million, resulting from an increase in net position 
attributable to the Corporation’s business-type activities of $38.9 million offset by a decrease of 
$1.5 million attributable to the Corporation’s governmental activities. 
 

 The Corporation’s single-family loan portfolio increased by $133.3 million during fiscal 2020 
providing the Corporation with a steady source of operating revenue.  Total loans serviced for 
others increased to $2.440 billion at June 30, 2020, an increase of $253.0 million from the prior 
year and now accounts for 86% of total single-family loan servicing.  Consistent with recent year 
strategies, since nearly all the Corporation’s loan production was delivered into the secondary 
market, total loans within the indenture, including mortgage-backed securities, decreased by 
$117.2 million to $328.1 million. 
 

 Single family loan originations for the year totaled $534.0 million, a decrease of $63.7 million from 
the prior year’s record production level.  With nearly all originations being delivered into the 
secondary market, the Corporation realized record net cash trading gains in excess of $23.1 million, 
a $5.5 million increase over the prior year, and fee income totaling $1.7 million, a slight reduction 
due to the decreased production levels. 
 

 Consistent with the requirements of government accounting standards dealing with pensions and 
other post-employment benefits costs, the Corporation recognized such expenses totaling $9.9 
million in fiscal 2020, a sizable decrease of $7.5 million from the prior year.  Other expenses also 
include a $2.0 million provision for estimated increased loan related losses attributable to the 
COVID-19 pandemic and loan forbearance provisions of stimulus passed by Congress.  Expenses 
other than the foregoing increased primarily in the area of computer operations and programming, 
some of which was also incurred as operations adjusted from on site to remote due to the 
pandemic.  
 

 Overall, the Corporation increased proprietary operating income $10.9 million (when measured 
before changes in fair value of marketable securities), which in addition to the impacts of the above 
discussions, resulted primarily from an increase of $0.9 million in fees primarily from loan servicing 
fees and a decrease of $1.0 million in net interest margin. 
 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
The financial statements consist of five parts – this management’s discussion and analysis, the basic 
financial statements, the notes to the financial statements, supplementary pension and other 
postemployment benefit (“OPEB”) schedules and supplementary combining information.  The basic 
financial statements include two different series of statements that present the Corporation’s financial 
position and performance. 
 

 Corporation-wide financial statements consist of a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of 
Activities.  These statements display information about the Corporation as a whole and are 
presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting 
as used by private-sector businesses.  Activities of the Corporation are distinguished as being 
either “governmental” or “business-type” activities.  
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 Fund financial statements report additional and detailed information about the Corporation. 
Governmental activities are reported under Governmental Funds financial statements.  These 
statements consist of a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
in Fund Net Position.  Governmental Funds statements are presented using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting used predominately in 
the public-sector. 

 Business-type activities are reported under Proprietary Funds financial statements.  These 
statements consist of a Statement of Fund Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Fund Net Position and a Statement of Cash Flows.  Proprietary Funds statements are 
also presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. 

 
Corporation-Wide Financial Statements – Pages 15 and 16 
 
The Corporation was created by state statute in 1972 as a de jure municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the Commonwealth of Kentucky.  The Corporation was created to serve a public purpose by 
increasing the supply of safe, decent and affordable residential housing.  
 
The Corporation operates a number of programs consistent with the mandate to promote affordable 
residential housing.  Several programs are identified within the financial statements as governmental type 
activities because they are financed with intergovernmental revenues.  Significant governmental activities 
financed by the federal government include the Department of Housing and Urban Development’s (“HUD”) 
Home Investment Partnerships Program (“HOME”), HUD’s Section 8 Rental Assistance programs (“Rental 
Assistance”), the Department of Energy’s Weatherization Assistance (“Weatherization”) program and the 
U.S. Treasury’s Hardest Hit Fund program (“Hardest Hit Fund”).  The Affordable Housing Trust Fund, which 
provides assistance to very-low income persons in meeting their basic housing needs, is funded by a portion 
of the fees received by County Clerks for recording and indexing various documents.  Other governmental 
activities are funded by the Commonwealth of Kentucky. 
 
The Corporation also operates a number of programs that are identified as business-type activities.  These 
activities include providing financing with favorable terms to qualified homebuyers and developers of 
affordable rental housing; servicing single-family and multifamily loan portfolios; and administering the 
Federal Low Income Housing Tax Credit program.  
 
The Corporation-wide financial statements separately present the governmental and business-type 
activities of the Corporation.  The nature of the Corporation’s governmental activities is such that 
substantially all funds flow through the Corporation to ultimate program recipients.  As a result, the Balance 
Sheet related to governmental activities shows a relatively small amount of assets, representing monies 
received by the Corporation but unexpended for each respective program’s purpose.  Conversely, the 
business-type activities of the Corporation create the vast majority of the Corporation’s assets, liabilities 
and net position as reflected in the Statement of Net Position.  The overall financial condition of the 
Corporation can thus be best evaluated through the analysis in the Proprietary Funds section in pages 9-
12 of the MD&A and under the Proprietary Funds’ financial statements on pages 21-25.  

The Statement of Activities shows the financial performance of each significant governmental and business-
type activity operated by the Corporation over the past year.  The revenues and expenses associated with 
each activity are shown as well as a net amount showing whether revenues exceeded expenses.  The net 
revenue of all governmental activities (after transfers) results in an increase (decrease) in the fund net 
position that is to be expended for program purposes.  The net revenue of all business-type activities results 
in an increase in the Fund Net Position of the Corporation.  The Corporation’s overall net position increased 
by $37.5 million for the year ended June 30, 2020.  Table 1 shows condensed financial information from 
the Statement of Net Position: 
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The net position of the governmental activities decreased from ($12.4 million) to ($13.9 million).  All assets 
of the Corporation’s governmental activities are externally restricted for program purposes.  Total assets 
subject to immediate disbursement are reflected as current liabilities and remaining assets are reflected as 
restricted net position.  The decrease in net position indicates that revenues received from governmental 
activities did not exceed program grants, operating expenditures and transfers.  The unrestricted net 
position of ($32.4 million) represents claims against program administrative revenues not yet received, and 
impact of the proportionate share of the net pension and OPEB liabilities. 
 
 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Current assets 27.7$     28.4$     258.2$    223.0$    285.9$    251.4$    
Non-current assets - - 597.7 728.7 597.7 728.7
   Total Assets   27.7 28.4 855.9 951.7 883.6 980.1

   Total Deferred Outflows of Resources  3.5 4.4 9.2 11.6 12.7 16.0

Current liabilities 9.2 9.3 118.2 136.6 127.4 145.9
Non-current liabilities 32.2 35.1 372.7 498.9 404.9 534.0
   Total Liabilities   41.4 44.4 490.9 635.5 532.3 679.9

   Total Deferred Inflows of Resources   3.7 .8 9.4 2.0 13.1 2.8

Net Position:
Invested in capital assets - - 3.6 3.4 3.6 3.4
Restricted 18.5 19.1 254.4 244.4 272.9 263.5
Unrestricted (32.4) (31.5) 106.8 78.0 74.4 46.5

        Net Position (13.9)$    (12.4)$    364.8$    325.8$    350.9$    313.4$    

Table 1
Statement of Net Position

(in millions)

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

Total
Corporation
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The net position of the Corporation’s business-type activities increased from $325.8 million to $364.8 million 
as a result of total revenues of $90.4 million, total program expenses of $54.6 million, and transfers in from 
government operations of $3.2 million, for a net increase in net position of business-type activities of $39.0 
million. Comparisons in the changes in net position between fiscal years 2020 and 2019 provide additional 
insight on the Corporation’s operating performance.  Table 2 shows condensed Statement of Activities 
financial information. 

 
 
Total revenues for governmental activities were $210.2 million during fiscal year 2020, a $1.3 million 
increase from the $208.9 million in revenues in fiscal year 2019.  The increase was due to a $1.1 million 
increase in operating grants and a $.2 million increase in charges for services.  Fiscal year 2020 operating 
grants include federal funding for Rental Assistance of $162.1 million, HOME of $10.1 million, Hardest Hit 
Fund of $1.6 million and Weatherization of $4.1 million, which represent 89% of total operating grant 
revenues. 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenues
Operating revenues 10.3$     10.1$     89.8$     93.4$     100.1$   103.5$   
Operating grants 199.9 198.8 .6 .6 200.5 199.4

        Total Revenues 210.2 208.9 90.4 94.0 300.6 302.9

Program Expenses
HOME program 11.4 11.6 - - 11.4 11.6
Weatherization assistance 4.7 4.5 - - 4.7 4.5
Rental assistance 166.9 165.2 - - 166.9 165.2
Hardest Hit Fund program 1.8 12.2 - - 1.8 12.2
Other federal and state programs 23.7 23.4 - - 23.7 23.4
Administrative - - 11.8 15.1 11.8 15.1
Bond financed loan programs - - 13.6 21.6 13.6 21.6
Loan servicing - - 8.4 7.1 8.4 7.1
Other loan and housing 

     credit programs - - 20.8 21.0 20.8 21.0
        Total Program Expenses 208.5 216.9 54.6 64.8 263.1 281.7

Excess before transfers 1.7 (8.0) 35.8 29.2 37.5 21.2

Interfund transfers in (out) (3.2) (3.6) 3.2 3.6 - -

Increase (Decrease) in  
   Net Position  (1.5)$     (11.6)$    39.0$     32.8$     37.5$     21.2$     

Corporation
Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities
Total

Table 2
Statement of Activities

(in millions)
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The Corporation receives fees or charges for services for federal program administration.  These revenues 
increased from $10.1 million in 2019 to $10.3 million during fiscal year 2020.  A substantial amount of the 
fees earned in excess of operating costs are transferred from the governmental funds to the proprietary 
funds of the Corporation.  During 2020, $10.3 million in fee revenue was received and $7.1 million in 
operating expenses were incurred thereby enabling a $3.2 million transfer, a $.4 million decrease from the 
$3.6 million transferred in 2019.   
 
Program expenses for governmental activities decreased during 2020 by $8.4 million.  Program expenses 
for governmental activities during 2020 were $208.5 million, comprised of grants of $200.4 million and 
operating expenses of $8.1 million.  In fiscal 2019, total program expenses were $216.9 million with grants 
of $207.4 million and operating expenses of $9.5 million. 
 
Total revenues for business-type activities were $90.4 million during fiscal year 2020, a $3.6 million 
decrease from the $94.0 million of revenues in fiscal year 2019.  For fiscal 2020, gross gains on the sale of 
loans held for sale increased $4.4 million, interest earnings from loans, mortgage-backed securities and 
other investments decreased $4.5 million, fees, charges and other income increased $.8 million and the 
change in fair value of securities decreased $4.3 million.  
 
Program expenses for business-type activities decreased $10.2 million from $64.8 million in 2019 to $54.6 
million in 2020.  Bond financed loan program expenses decreased by $8.0 million, administrative expenses, 
or expenses not directly attributable to programs decreased by $3.3 million, loan servicing expenses 
increased by $1.3 million and other loan program expenses decreased by $.2 million.  The line items related 
to these expenses are presented in detail in Table 2. 
 
The excess of revenues over expenses for business-type activities was $35.8 million in 2020 compared to 
$29.2 million in 2019, an increase of $6.6 million.  As described above and in additional detail under 
“Proprietary Funds,” the increase is due to a $3.6 million decrease in revenues and a $10.2 million decrease 
in expenses.  Transfers-in were $3.2 million in 2020, a $.4 million decrease from 2019.  Such changes in 
revenues, expenses and transfers resulted in an increase in business-type activities change in net position 
of $6.2 million.   
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The following section provides information on the Corporation’s fund financial statements. 
 
Governmental Funds – Pages 17 through 20 
 
Each of the columns presented in the governmental funds financial statements represents an independent 
program operated by the Corporation.  A description of each program can be found under Note A of the 
“Notes to Financial Statements.”  Other Housing Funds include several independent programs, each of 
which does not meet the criteria for separate financial reporting. 
 
The current assets of each governmental fund are held pending disbursement for program purposes.  Most 
program disbursements are in the form of a grant or subsidy to program recipients.  However, certain 
disbursements under the Affordable Housing Trust Fund, the HOME Program and the Treasury Housing 
Credit program are in the form of loans.  Because of the extended loan terms, minimal interest rates and 
the credit risks associated with these loans, loan loss provisions have been established at 100%.  As of 
June 30, 2020, the Corporation retained $27.7 million of total assets for program purposes and had $9.2 
million reflected as program liabilities resulting in a total of $18.5 million reflected as restricted fund balances 
for program purposes.  
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During fiscal year 2020, the Affordable Housing Trust Fund had revenues greater than expended funds of 
$.6 million, thereby increasing the program’s fund net position.  Rental Assistance revenues of $169.6 
million were expended for programs and $3.2 million was transferred to the proprietary funds. Similarly, all 
HOME program revenues, $11.2 million, were expensed in an equal amount in 2020, as were 
Weatherization revenues of $4.6 million.  Revenues of the Hardest Hit Fund program exceeded expenses 
by $.2 million, thereby increasing the fund net position of the Hardest Hit Fund.  Finally, Other Housing 
Funds expenses exceeded revenues by $1.4 million, thereby decreasing the fund net position of Other 
Housing Funds. 
 
Proprietary Funds – Pages 21 through 25 
 
A significant portion of the Corporation’s financial resources and activities is reported in the proprietary fund 
financial statements.  Proprietary funds account for approximately 97% of corporate assets, 90% of non-
grant revenues, 87% of operating expenses and 100% of the Corporation’s unrestricted net position. 
 
Proprietary funds are organized in accordance with the restrictions described under Note B of the “Notes 
to Financial Statements.”  The discussion and analysis of proprietary funds will focus on the combined totals 
of the three separate funds.  Primary attention, however, will be given to the financial condition and 
performance of the Housing Revenue Bond Funds which comprise 65% of the total assets, 30% of total 
revenues, and 67% of the fund net position of proprietary fund combined totals. 
 
The Corporation’s primary business-type activity involves the production and/or sale of single-family 
mortgage loans.  This objective is achieved through the Corporation’s Housing Revenue Bond program or 
the Secondary Market Mortgage Purchase program.   
 
Historically, the Corporation has issued mortgage revenue bonds to fund qualifying residential single-family 
and multi-family mortgage loans.  The federal tax code, with certain exceptions, limits the allowable spread 
between the Corporation’s cost of funds and the interest rate charged to borrowers to 1.125%.  This spread 
allows the Corporation to cover operating costs, including servicing costs, of the Housing Finance Program.   
 
Since 2012, most of the Corporation’s single-family mortgage loan production has been through the 
Secondary Market Mortgage Purchase program.  This program allows the Corporation to fund mortgage 
loans outside the bond indenture at more competitive market rates with the intent of selling the mortgages 
to secondary market investors.  Through this program, the Corporation agrees to purchase various 
mortgage loans from its lender partners.  In the case of agency insured/guaranteed loans, the mortgages 
are pooled into mortgage-backed securities issued by the Government National Mortgage Association 
(“GNMA”) which are then sold on the secondary market.  Beginning in fiscal year 2013, the Corporation 
also began funding uninsured and, to a much smaller extent, insured conventional loans for sale on a whole 
loan basis to Fannie Mae.  These loans are subject to a brief period during which they are sold with recourse 
back to the Corporation, after which they revert to full recourse to Fannie Mae.  Loans sold pursuant to the 
Secondary Market Mortgage Purchase program are sold with servicing retained by the Corporation.  
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Condensed financial information from the Statement of Net Position follows in Table 3. 
 

 
 
Total program-purpose assets at June 30, 2020 were $524.0 million. Mortgage loans, mortgage-backed 
securities, housing construction loans and other loans decreased by $74.4 million or 12% during 2020.  The 
decrease was the result of program loan fundings of $50.3 million, program loan repayments of $99.5 
million, an allowance for loan loss increase of $.8 million, an accrued program loan interest decrease of $.3 
million, plus net decreases in mortgage-backed securities, of $24.1 million, resulting from sales of 
mortgage-backed securities of $53.2 million, purchases of mortgage-backed securities of $35 million, 
normal amortization and changes in fair values netting to $5.9 million.  This decrease in program assets 
reflects the Corporation’s continued delivery of single-family loan originations into the secondary market. 
  

2020 2019 Change

Program-Purpose Assets:
   Mortgage loans and real estate owned 461.0$       511.8$       (50.8)$        
   Mortgage-backed securities 56.0          80.1          (24.1)         
   Housing construction loans 2.7            1.2            1.5            
   Other loans 4.3            5.3            (1.0)           
      Total Program-Purpose Assets 524.0         598.4         (74.4)         

Cash and Investments 275.2         294.2         (19.0)         
Loans held for sale 42.7          44.5          (1.8)           
Other assets 14.0          14.6          (0.6)           
      Total Assets 855.9         951.7         (95.8)         

      Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 9.2            11.6          (2.4)           

Bonds payable 289.6         416.5         (126.9)        
Net pension and OPEB liabilities 82.8          90.3          (7.5)           
Other liabilities 118.5         128.7         (10.2)         
      Total Liabilities 490.9         635.5         (144.6)        

      Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 9.4            2.0            7.4            

            Fund Net Position 364.8$       325.8$       39.0$         

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Net Position

(in millions)

Table 3
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The Debt Service Reserve Fund maintains deposits to provide additional security and a source of liquidity 
to bond investors.  Deposits must be maintained at the level required under the Corporation’s bond 
indenture.  At June 30, 2020, the Debt Service Reserve requirement was $47.9 million and the amount on 
deposit was $175.2 million.  (The Housing Revenue Bond Resolution (“Resolution”) requires that the 
amounts on deposit be valued at the lesser of par or fair value and inclusive of any interest or gain realized 
to the valuation date.)  The Corporation has designated approximately $65 million of the remaining $130.4 
million in excess reserves for purposes of providing self-liquidity for certain of the Corporation’s variable 
rate bonds, thereby saving the cost of paying outside liquidity providers. 
 
During 2020, the Corporation incurred line of credit borrowings in the amount of $309.2 million.  Total bond 
and line-of-credit principal repayments were $456.7 million and the change in net unamortized bond 
premium was $.5 million.  As a result of this activity, bonds outstanding decreased $126.9 million and short-
term debt decreased by $21.1 million.  The Corporation’s Housing Revenue Bond Indenture is rated AAA 
by Standard & Poor’s with a stable outlook and is rated Aaa by Moody’s with a stable outlook.   
 
The following Table 4 provides condensed financial information from the Statement of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Fund Net Position. 

 

 

Interest income on loans $ 25.2   $ 27.6   $ (2.4)    
Interest income on mortgage-backed securities 2.4     3.5     (1.1)    
Interest income on marketable securities 3.4     4.4     (1.0)    
Increase (decrease) in fair value of securities 3.4     7.7     (4.3)    
Gains on sales of loans held for sale 38.1   33.7   4.4     
Fees, charges and other income 17.9   17.1   0.8     
      Total operating revenues 90.4   94.0   (3.6)    

Interest expense on revenue bonds and lines of credit 11.9   15.4   (3.5)    
Provision for loan losses 1.4     2.2     (0.8)    
General and administrative 25.9   29.9   (4.0)    
Loan origination costs 13.2   14.9   (1.7)    
Other expenses 2.2     2.4     (0.2)    
      Total operating expenses 54.6   64.8   (10.2)  

      Operating income (loss) 35.8   29.2   6.6     

Interfund transfers in 3.2     3.6     (0.4)    

      Changes in Fund Net Position      $ 39.0   $ 32.8   $ 6.2     

Table 4
Proprietary Funds

Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
(in millions)

2020 2019 Change
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The change in fund net position increased by $6.2 million in 2020, compared to a $17.8 million increase for 
2019.  The $6.2 million increase is attributable to several factors.  Interest income on loans, mortgage-
backed securities and marketable securities decreased $4.5 million, from $35.5 million in 2019 to $31.0 
million in 2020.  Gains on sales of loans held for sale increased $4.4 million, from $33.7 million in 2019 to 
$38.1 million in 2020.  The change in fair value of investment securities decreased by $4.3 million, from 
$7.7 million in 2019 to $3.4 million in 2020.  Fees, charges and other income increased $.8 million, from 
$17.1 million in 2019 to $17.9 million in 2020.   
 
Interest expense on revenue bonds and lines of credit decreased $3.5 million, from $15.4 million in 2019 
to $11.9 million in 2020.  The provision for loan losses decreased $.8 million, from $2.2 million in 2019 to 
$1.4 million in 2020. General and administrative expenses decreased $4.0 million, from $29.9 million in 
2019 to $25.9 million in 2020.  Loan origination costs decreased $1.7 million, from $14.9 million in 2019 to 
$13.2 million in 2020. 
 
Also, other expenses, including grants, loan servicing expenses and the expensing of debt issuance costs, 
decreased $.2 million, from $2.4 million in 2019 to $2.2 million in 2020.     
 
Finally, changes in fund net position were impacted by interfund transfers of $3.2 million, a $.4 million 
decrease from transfers of $3.6 million in 2019.  (See “Governmental Funds” for additional information on 
interfund transfers.) 
 
 
Financial Outlook 
 
The COVID-19 pandemic has caused incredible challenges to the nation’s; indeed the world’s, health and 
well-being and the resulting economic and social repercussions are on a scale not experienced in 
generations. It is unclear whether fiscal and monetary initiatives will be successful in reducing the impact 
sufficiently to prevent worldwide recession or depression.  The Corporation has been tasked with providing 
relief to many Kentuckians who have been adversely affected by the pandemic, ranging from increased 
rental assistance to increased homelessness prevention to loan forbearance.  Significant funding has been 
provided by numerous federal relief initiatives for both the direct relief to those impacted and for the 
administrative costs of managing the process.  Years of prudent resource management and preservation 
has assisted the Corporation in its response to the pandemic.  Management believes the Corporation has 
sufficient expertise and liquidity to deliver the assistance necessary to weather this emergency, though 
clearly many uncertainties remain.  The personal safety of our employees remains paramount.  Most staff 
will continue to work remotely until such time as operating from the Corporation’s campus can be more 
safely resumed. 
 
Though recent developments at the national level are clearly pandemic-related, Corporation management 
remains watchful for developments, including the Presidential election, that could foreshadow substantial 
shifts in national housing policies and finance initiatives, or substantive changes in the roles of Fannie Mae 
and Freddie Mac, which could necessitate significant adjustments in the Corporation’s delivery of safe 
affordable housing and financing.  Similarly, management is monitoring possible legislative or regulatory 
changes that may impact the Corporation’s ability to fulfill its mission to the citizens of the Commonwealth 
and will be working with its national trade group and others to both mitigate negative impacts and support 
positive impacts of such changes.  Though there has been some modest activity in the status of the Project 
Based Contract Administration contract with HUD, there is not yet a long-term solution to this vital program.  
The loss of, or significant negative changes to the financial opportunities of this contract, would have a 
negative impact on the Corporation’s operating results.  
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As has been the case for the past several years, a single immediate financial issue facing the Corporation 
remains the underfunded status of and resultant future contributions to both the Corporation’s pension plan 
and the Corporation’s post-employment medical premium benefits plan.  See Note K for a discussion of the 
Corporation’s participation in these state plans.  Eliminating the Corporation’s portion of the underfunded 
condition of these plans will require decades of cash infusions, depriving the Corporation of significant 
resources.  In July 2019, the Kentucky General Assembly, meeting in special session, passed legislation 
designed to provide funding alternatives to many plan participants, of which Kentucky Housing Corporation 
is one.  The legislation provides for several options to withdraw from participating in Kentucky Retirement 
Systems (KRS), as well as an option to remain a participant of KRS.  Due to COVID-19 pandemic conditions 
the Kentucky General Assembly delayed by one year the date by which the Corporation must make its 
decision.  As such, management will be evaluating these options during fiscal 2021 to determine the most 
advantageous course of action, from a corporate financial, as well as, employee welfare standpoint and will 
be making recommendations to the Board of Directors.  For fiscal 2021, budget legislation also provides for 
another one-year reduction in what was scheduled to be a significant increase in the Corporation’s funding 
contribution rate, which will remain at 49.47%.  While management considers the appropriate response to 
these challenges, it is committed, despite the magnitude of unfunded liabilities, to both generating sufficient 
resources to continue the Corporation’s important role in providing affordable housing and preserving the 
necessary resources to fund the obligations. 
 
Prevailing low interest rates, again largely an impact of the pandemic, create both opportunities and 
challenges.  The costs of the Corporation’s variable rate bonds are at historic lows, thereby improving 
interest margins in the indenture, but low rates also limit the earning power of the Corporation’s investable 
funds.  Low rates have also made homeownership in general more affordable and stimulated significant 
numbers of loan payoffs due to refinancing which result in erosion of the Corporation’s loan servicing 
revenue stream, but which do not necessarily create corresponding increases in the number of first-time 
homebuyers, the population the Corporation serves.  The current rate environment and the possibility of 
changes in borrower behavior reminds management to monitor conditions continuously and react quickly 
and appropriately to protect Corporate resources.    Management, in concert with the Corporation’s financial 
partners, continually considers strategies to take maximum advantage of market conditions. 
 
Management continues to believe that given the current interest rate environment and market execution of 
the Corporation’s sales of single-family loans into the secondary market, that utilizing the Secondary Market 
Mortgage Purchase program will be the primary funding source for single-family loans for the immediate 
future.  As such, the bond indenture portfolio continues to shrink resulting in decreasing net interest income.  
Corporation management, as it has in the past, will continue to take advantage of bond refunding and other 
interest rate management techniques to maximize net interest income from the indenture portfolio, 
recognizing that the net income generated by that portfolio will continue to decrease and be replaced by  
secondary market trading gains, loan servicing income and the investment of cash generated therefrom.  
 
The Corporation’s historic concentration on U.S. Government insured/guaranteed and conventional insured 
mortgage loan production, coupled with conservative investment requirements, limit the Corporation’s 
exposure to default risk.  Most of the Corporation’s investment in Fannie Mae servicing is with recourse to 
Fannie Mae and there is minimal underlying default risk associated with loans backing the Corporation’s 
GNMA mortgage-backed securities investments and servicing.  With the recent uptick in default rates, 
primarily the result of the pandemic, the Corporation may experience loss rates greater than in recent years.   
Management is mindful that other unexpected economic disruptions could subject the Corporation to 
increased losses.  Indeed, nearly 65% of the Corporation’s loans in the single-family portfolios, both 
serviced for others and owned, are less than four years old and have not been through a recessionary 
economy.  Additional information on the Corporation’s single-family portfolio, mortgage-backed securities 
investment, allowance for loan losses and loan servicing can be found in Notes C, D, E and F in the “Notes 
to Financial Statements.” 
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Though many first-time homebuyers can afford the monthly payment necessary to finance a home 
purchase, many do not have sufficient funds to afford the down payment.  With almost all the Corporation’s 
single-family loan originations now possible only with Corporation supplied down payment assistance, 
changes in the competitive environment regarding such assistance, or availability of sufficient funding 
sources, may impact future loan volumes and pricing.  Finding available sources of funding and developing 
effective designs of down-payment assistance that are both financially advantageous and beneficial to the 
borrower will continue to be a top priority for the next several years. 
 
The Corporation has maintained its dedicated effort to increase its presence in the multi-family housing 
market with the aim to more effectively deploy available resources, including low income housing tax credits 
and conduit bond techniques, to maximize the number of families impacted, both with new construction and 
preservation of existing properties.  Participation in these efforts continues to increase, benefitting both the 
families served and generating income opportunities, as these initiatives have been favorably received by 
our housing partners throughout the Commonwealth.  Increasing the number of affordable multi-family 
housing units is a natural complement to the Corporation’s history of providing single-family financing and 
helps stretch our mission dollar to reach the maximum number of the Commonwealth’s population in need.   
   

Consistent with its mission, the Corporation continues to serve Kentuckians seeking safe affordable housing 
options, whether those options are single-family home financing opportunities, rental assistance, multi-
family housing initiatives, finding safe shelter/housing for Kentucky’s special needs citizens or especially in 
today’s troubled times being ready to assist in delivering much needed aid to those adversely impacted by 
the pandemic.  The Corporation has served the Commonwealth for over 45 years through numerous 
economic cycles by respecting the necessity for prudent resource management and will be here for years 
to come; this long-term commitment is how the Corporation maintains its position as Kentucky’s affordable 
housing leader. 
 

Contacting the Corporation’s Financial Management 
 
This report is designed to provide our stakeholders with the information needed to understand the 
Corporation’s financial condition and results of operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.  Inquiries 
may be directed to James F. Statler, Chief Financial Officer at Kentucky Housing Corporation, 1231 
Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601.  Telephone: (502) 564-7630, x286, fax: (502) 564-7322, e-
mail:  jstatler@kyhousing.org. 
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Business-
Governmental Type Combined

Activities Activities Totals
ASSETS
Current Assets

 Cash and cash equivalents 9,607$         99,216$      108,823$   
 Investment securities 16,863         78,818       95,681       
 Mortgage-backed securities -                 2,687         2,687         
 Housing mortgage loans held for sale -                 42,656       42,656       
 Housing mortgage loans -                 27,441       27,441       
 Housing construction loans -                 2,670         2,670         
 Other loans -                 432            432           
 Accounts receivable and other assets 1,452          4,011         5,463         
 Interfund accounts (212)            212            -                

         Total Current Assets 27,710         258,143      285,853     

Noncurrent Assets
  Investment securities -                 97,140       97,140       
  Mortgage-backed securities -                 53,329       53,329       
  Housing mortgage loans -                 433,185      433,185     
  Other loans -                 3,836         3,836         
  Real estate owned and related receivables -                 463            463           
  Capital assets -                 3,568         3,568         
  Other noncurrent assets -                 6,179         6,179         

          Total Noncurrent Assets -                 597,700      597,700     
          Total Assets    27,710         855,843      883,553     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
   Deferred outflows related to pension 2,579          6,631         9,210         
   Deferred outflows related to OPEB 920             2,555         3,475         

            Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,499          9,186         12,685       

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Lines of credit -                 7,875         7,875         
Accounts payable and other liabilities 9,192          2,199         11,391       
Accrued interest payable -                 4,537         4,537         
Escrows and project reserves -                 87,855       87,855       
Revenue bonds, due within one year -                 15,700       15,700       

        Total Current Liabilities 9,192          118,166      127,358     

Noncurrent Liabilities
Revenue bonds, due after one year -                 273,902      273,902     
Other noncurrent liabilities -                 15,988       15,988       
Net pension liability 27,819         71,535       99,354       
Net OPEB liability 4,378          11,259       15,637       

        Total Noncurrent Liabilities 32,197         372,684      404,881     
        Total Liabilities   41,389         490,850      532,239     

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
     Deferred inflows related to pension 2,381          6,121         8,502         
     Deferred inflows related to OPEB 1,284          3,301         4,585         
            Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,665          9,422         13,087       

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets -                 3,568         3,568         
Restricted by
   Revenue bond indenture -                 245,860      245,860     
   Enabling legislation -                 8,490         8,490         
   Program requirements 18,518         -                18,518       
Unrestricted (32,363)        106,839      74,476       

           Net Position (13,845)$      364,757$    350,912$   
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Program Revenues
Charges for Operating Governmental Business-Type

Functions/Activities Grants Operating Services Grants Activities Activities Total
Governmental Activities

HOME program 10,132$    1,218$      1,099$       10,134$    (117)$            -$                 (117)$          
Weatherization assistance 4,075       604          521           4,075        (83)               -                  (83)             
Rental assistance 162,145    4,757       7,456         162,145    2,699            -                  2,699          
Hardest Hit Fund program 1,631       170          170           1,848        217              -                  217            
Other federal and state housing programs 22,450      1,283       1,119         21,669      (945)             -                  (945)           

      Total Governmental Activities 200,433    8,032       10,365       199,871    1,771            -                  1,771          

Business-Type Activities
Administrative 878          10,949      859           55            -                   (10,913)         (10,913)       
Bond financed loan programs -              13,645      27,265       -               -                   13,620          13,620        
Loan servicing -              8,350       11,042       -               -                   2,692           2,692          
Other loan and housing credit programs -              20,825      50,580       535           -                   30,290          30,290        

      Total Business-Type Activities 878          53,769      89,746       590           -                   35,689          35,689        

      Total Activities    201,311$  61,801$    100,111$   200,461$   1,771            35,689          37,460        

Transfers (3,244)           3,244           -                 

Change in Net Position (1,473)           38,933          37,460        

Net Position, Beginning of Year (12,372)         325,824        313,452      

Net Position, End of Year (13,845)$       364,757$      350,912$    

Net (Expense) Revenues and
Changes in Net Position

Direct Expenses
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Affordable

Housing Treasury Other

Trust HOME Housing Weatherization Rental Hardest Housing Combined

Fund Program Credit Assistance Assistance Hit Fund Funds Totals

ASSETS

Current Assets
     Cash and cash equivalents 405$          6,822$       -$                -$                       940$          115$           1,325$       9,607$       

     Investment securities 14,078       -                  -                  -                         -                  1,247          1,538         16,863       

     Accounts receivable and other assets -                  326            -                  308                    -                  -                   818            1,452         

     Interfund accounts -                  (195)           -                  (61)                     274            -                   (230)           (212)           

          Total Current Assets 14,483       6,953         -                  247                    1,214         1,362          3,451         27,710       

Noncurrent Assets
     Program loans 22,499       107,833    30,659       -                         -                  55,887        6,463         223,341    

     Less loan loss provision (22,499)     (107,833)   (30,659)     -                         -                  (55,887)      (6,463)        (223,341)   

           Total Noncurrent Assets -                  -                  -                  -                         -                  -                   -                  -                  

           Total Assets 14,483$    6,953$       -$                247$                 1,214$       1,362$        3,451$       27,710$    

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
     Accounts payable and program advances -$                6,943$       -$                247$                 1,214$       137$           651$          9,192$       

FUND BALANCE
     Restricted by program requirements 14,483       10               -                  -                         -                  1,225          2,800         18,518       

          Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 14,483$    6,953$       -$                247$                 1,214$       1,362$        3,451$       27,710$    
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Fund balances - total governmental funds 18,518$           

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
 Net Position are different because of the measurement attributable to:

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the individual governmental funds:
governmental funds:

Net pension liability (27,819)$          
Net OPEB liability (4,378)              (32,197)            

Deferred outflows and inflows or resources related to
pensions and OPEB are applicable to future periods 
and, therefore, are not reported in the individual
governmental funds:

Deferred outflows of resources representing 2020
employer contributions to pensions and OPEB:

Contributions related to pensions 1,343               
Contributions related to OPEB 275                  1,618               

Other deferred outflows of resources:
Outflows related to pensions 1,236               
Outflows related to OPEB 645                  1,881               

Deferred inflows of resources:
Inflows related to pensions (2,381)              
Inflows related to OPEB (1,284)              (3,665)              

Net position of governmental activities (13,845)$          
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Affordable
Housing Other

Trust HOME Weatherization Rental Hardest Housing Combined
Fund Program Assistance Assistance Hit Fund Funds Totals

Revenues
  Federal and state administrative fees -$            1,099$     521$                7,456$     170$                1,119$      10,365$    
  Pass-through grant revenues 5,191       10,134     4,075               162,145   1,848               16,478      199,871    

          Total Revenues 5,191       11,233     4,596               169,601   2,018               17,597      210,236    

Expenditures
  General and administrative -              1,099       521                  4,212       170                  1,119        7,121       
  Pass-through grant expenditures 4,564       10,132     4,075               162,145   1,631               17,886      200,433    

          Total Expenditures 4,564       11,231     4,596               166,357   1,801               19,005      207,554    

          Revenues in Excess of
             Expenditures 627         2             -                      3,244       217                  (1,408)       2,682       

Interfund Transfers -              -              -                      (3,244)      -                      -               (3,244)      

     Change in Fund Balance   627         2             -                      -              217                  (1,408)       (562)         

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 13,856     8             -                      -              1,008               4,208        19,080      

Fund Balance, End of Year   14,483$   10$         -$                    -$            1,225$              2,800$      18,518$    
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Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds (562)$               

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
   Corporation-Wide Statement of Activities are different because of
   the measurement focus attributable to:

Governmental funds report pension and OPEB contributions as 
   expenditures using the current financial resources measurement focus. 
   However, in the Corporation-Wide Statement of Activities, the cost of
   pension and OPEB benefits earned is reported by the economic
   resource measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting.

Corporation contributions (deferred outflows) for:
Pension 1,343$             
OPEB 275                  1,618               

Cost of benefits earned for:
Pension (2,315)              
OPEB (214)                 (2,529)              

Change in net position of governmental activities (1,473)$            
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Housing
Revenue Housing

General Bond Development Combined
Funds Funds Fund Totals

ASSETS
Current Assets

 Cash and cash equivalents 98,373$      495$           348$           99,216$        
 Investment securities 15,870       62,476       472           78,818         
 Mortgage-backed securities -                2,687         -                2,687           
 Housing mortgage loans held for sale 42,656       -                -                42,656         
 Housing mortgage loans 9,737         17,704       -                27,441         
 Housing construction loans -                -                2,670         2,670           
 Other loans 432           -                -                432             
 Accounts receivable and other assets 4,011         -                -                4,011           
 Interfund accounts (4,841)        53             5,000         212             

        Total Current Assets 166,238     83,415       8,490         258,143       

Noncurrent Assets
 Investment securities -                97,140       -                97,140         
 Mortgage-backed securities -                53,329       -                53,329         
 Housing mortgage loans 107,637     325,548     -                433,185       
 Other loans 3,836         -                -                3,836           
 Real estate owned and related receivables 463           -                -                463             
 Capital assets 3,568         -                -                3,568           
 Other noncurrent assets 6,179         -                -                6,179           

          Total Noncurrent Assets 121,683     476,017     -                597,700       
          Total Assets    287,921 559,432 8,490 855,843

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
    Deferred outflows related to pension 5,096         1,535         -                6,631           
    Deferred outflows related to OPEB 2,007         548           -                2,555           
           Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 7,103         2,083         -                9,186           

(Continued)
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Housing
Revenue Housing

General Bond Development Combined
Funds Funds Fund Totals

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

  Lines of credit 7,875$       -$              -$              7,875$         
  Accounts payable and other liabilities 2,033         166           -                2,199           
  Accrued interest payable -                4,537         -                4,537           
  Escrows and project reserves 87,855       -                -                87,855         
  Revenue bonds -                15,700       -                15,700         

          Total Current Liabilities 97,763       20,403       -                118,166       

Noncurrent Liabilities
   Revenue bonds -                273,902     -                273,902       
   Other noncurrent liabilities 15,988       -                -                15,988         
   Net pension liability 54,973       16,562       -                71,535         
   Net OPEB liability 8,652         2,607         -                11,259         

          Total Noncurrent Liabilities 79,613       293,071     -                372,684       
          Total Liabilities   177,376     313,474     -                490,850       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
     Deferred inflows related to pension 4,704         1,417         -                6,121           
     Deferred inflows related to OPEB 2,537         764           -                3,301           
           Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 7,241         2,181         -                9,422           

NET POSITION
     Invested in capital assets 3,568         -                -                3,568           
     Restricted by

       Revenue bond indenture -                245,860     -                245,860       
       Enabling legislation -                -                8,490         8,490           

     Unrestricted 106,839     -                -                106,839       

          Net Position 110,407$   245,860$   8,490$       364,757$     
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Housing
Revenue Housing

General Bond Development Combined
Funds Funds Fund Totals

Operating Revenues
Interest and fee income

Housing mortgage and construction loans 7,286$      17,700$     153$         25,139$   
Mortgage-backed securities -               2,390        -               2,390      
Marketable securities 111          3,286        31             3,428      

Net increase in fair value of securities -               3,413        -               3,413      
Gains on sales of loans held for sale 38,120      -               -               38,120    
Fees, charges and other income 17,409      437           -               17,846    

Total Operating Revenues 62,926      27,226      184           90,336    

Operating Expenses
Interest on revenue bonds and lines of credit 440          11,502      -               11,942    
Provision for losses on loans 1,284        40             61             1,385      
General and administrative 25,648      220           -               25,868    
Housing assistance grants 878          -               -               878         
Mortgage loan servicers' fees 42            1,324        -               1,366      
Loan origination costs 13,208      -               -               13,208    

Total Operating Expenses 41,500      13,086      61             54,647    

Operating Income (Loss)    21,426      14,140      123           35,689    

Interfund Transfers 7,586        (4,342)       -               3,244      

Change in Net Position 29,012      9,798        123           38,933    

Net Position, Beginning of Year 81,395      236,062     8,367        325,824   

Net Position, End of Year   110,407$   245,860$    8,490$       364,757$  
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Housing
Revenue Housing

General Bond Development Combined
Funds Funds Fund Totals

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Interest income on loans 7,289$         17,700$      153$                25,142$       
Gain on sales of loans held for sale 37,076         -                 -                      37,076         
Fees, charges and other income 18,527         -                 -                      18,527         
Personnel costs (18,881)        -                 -                      (18,881)        
Operating expenses (16,051)        (1,544)         -                      (17,595)        
Housing assistance grants (878)            -                 -                      (878)            
Fundings of housing mortgage loans (576,895)      (196)            -                      (577,091)      
Repayments on housing mortgage loans 40,543         51,633        -                      92,176         
Conversion of mortgage loans to mortgage-backed securities

and loans sold on secondary market 536,129       -                 -                      536,129       
Net changes in housing construction loans 619             -                 (2,087)              (1,468)          
Other, net 1,207          299             -                      1,506           

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 28,685         67,892        (1,934)              94,643         

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Proceeds from lines of credit 309,203       -                 -                      309,203       
Principal payments on revenue bonds and line of credit (330,328)      (126,380)     -                      (456,708)      
Interest payments on lines of credit and revenue bonds (421)            (13,467)       -                      (13,888)        
Changes in escrows and project reserves 11,584         -                 -                      11,584         
Interfund transfers 7,044          (3,800)         -                      3,244           

Net Cash Provided By (Used In)
Noncapital Financing Activities (2,918)         (143,647)     -                      (146,565)      

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets (457)            -                 -                      (457)            

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of investments and mortgage-backed securities (649,470)      (548,362)     (36)                  (1,197,868)   
Sales of investments and mortgage-backed securities 637,750       611,020      2,150               1,250,920    
Gain on sales of investments and mortgage-backed securities -                 5,424          -                      5,424           
Interest received on investments and mortgage-backed securities 114             6,430          36                   6,580           

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing Activities (11,606)        74,512        2,150               65,056         

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents    13,704         (1,243)         216                  12,677         

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 84,669         1,738          132                  86,539         

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year   98,373$       495$           348$                99,216$       

(Continued)
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Housing
Revenue Housing

General Bond Development Combined
Funds Funds Fund Totals

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities

Operating income 21,426$      14,140$      123$           35,689$      
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities:
Gain related to servicing intangible asset (1,044) -                -                (1,044)
Provision for losses on loans 1,284 40 61 1,385
Amortization of intangible asset 1,249         -                -                1,249
Depreciation expense 343 -                -                343
Interest expense on lines of credit and revenue bonds 440 11,502       -                11,942
Interest income on mortgage-backed securities -                (2,390)        -                (2,390)
Interest income on marketable securities (111)           (3,286)        (31)            (3,428)
Net (increase) in fair value of marketable securities -                (3,413)        -                (3,413)
Other income -                (437)           -                (437)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
   Fundings of housing mortgage loans (576,895) (196)           -                (577,091)
   Repayments on housing mortgage loans 40,543 51,633       -                92,176
   Conversion of mortgage loans to mortgage 
       backed securities and loans sold on secondary market 536,129 -                -                536,129
   Housing construction loans 619 -                (2,087) (1,468)
   Other, net 4,702 299            -                5,001

        Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 28,685$      67,892$      (1,934)$       94,643$      
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Note A--Compliance with Enabling Legislation and Bond Resolutions 
 
The Kentucky Housing Corporation (the “Corporation”) was established in 1972 by the Kentucky General 
Assembly under the provisions of the Kentucky Housing Corporation Act (the “Act”).  The Act, as amended, 
authorizes the Corporation to issue bonds and notes, the cumulative outstanding indebtedness of which 
does not exceed $5,000,000.  The Act and the Bond Resolutions adopted by the Corporation contain 
provisions establishing funds and accounts for the segregation and restriction of assets and also restrict 
the use of the proceeds of bonds as well as other funds received.  Further, the Act and the Bond Resolutions 
authorize the Corporation to invest in obligations of the United States, the Commonwealth of Kentucky (the 
“Commonwealth”), or their agencies or instrumentalities.  The Corporation is a component unit of the 
Commonwealth and, as such, its financial statements are included in the Commonwealth’s Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report. 
 
The Corporation primarily makes first mortgage loans to finance single-family and multi-family housing units 
within Kentucky.  Single-family loans are made primarily to first-time home buyers meeting certain low-to-
moderate income guidelines.  Substantially all assets are held by banks as trustees and are pledged as 
collateral for the Corporation's bonds.  The Corporation also administers various programs for federal and 
state agencies.  Funds held for these programs are restricted as to use by statutes, contracts or other 
agreements. 
 
 
Note B--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Basis of Presentation: The Corporation's financial statements are prepared in accordance with 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments and related statements, and 
are comprised of three components: 1) Corporation-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, 
and 3) notes to the financial statements.  The Corporation-wide financial statements are comprised of a 
statement of net position and a statement of activities.  Prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, these statements reflect all of the assets, liabilities, 
revenues, expenses, deferred inflows, deferred outflows, gains and losses of governmental and 
business-type activities.  The governmental activities reflect the administration of the various programs for 
the Commonwealth and the federal government.  The business-type activities include single and multi-
family loan programs and other lender services.  The Corporation follows GASB pronouncements as 
codified under GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance 
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. 
 
The Corporation's fund financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to governmental entities, which provide that 
accounting systems be organized by funds to account for specific activities consistent with legal and 
operating requirements.   
 
Governmental Funds: The governmental funds financial statements are prepared utilizing the current 
financial economic resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting and include 
the activities of administering rental subsidy and other federal and state housing programs for the 
Commonwealth and HUD.  Revenues considered susceptible to accrual are those revenues that are both 
measurable and available, usually grant revenue.  In substance, “available” means that the item is a 
resource that can be used to finance the governmental operations within a 60-day period.  Each 
governmental fund is considered a major fund. 
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Note B--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
The Corporation’s governmental funds (special revenue funds) are: 
 

Affordable Housing Trust Fund:  This fund accounts for resources made available in the form of 
grants or loans to local governments, nonprofits and regional or statewide housing assistance 
organizations to provide housing to very low-income Kentucky residents with critical housing needs.  
The fund’s resources are primarily provided by a portion of the fees received by county clerks for 
recording and indexing various documents.  Such allocation of resources was approved by the 
Kentucky General Assembly in 2006. 
 
HOME Program:  This fund accounts for resources made available from the federal government 
through its Home Investment Partnerships Program (“HOME”) to help local governments, nonprofits, 
private developers, community housing development organizations and individuals to provide safe, 
decent and affordable housing.  Resources are made available to these entities and individuals through 
both grants and loans.   
 
Treasury Housing Credit:  This fund accounts for resources made available through the United States 
Department of Treasury (“Treasury”) via Section 1602 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment 
Act of 2009.  Under Section 1602 the Treasury issued cash assistance to state housing credit agencies 
in exchange for low income housing tax credits initially allocated in 2008 and 2009.  These resources 
are secured by deferred, forgivable at maturity mortgage loans.  
 
Weatherization Assistance:  This fund accounts for resources made available from the federal 
government to assist eligible individuals in reducing their utility costs by improving the energy efficiency 
of their homes.   
 
Rental Assistance:  This fund accounts for resources made available from the federal government to 
assist eligible individuals to rent decent, safe and affordable housing and to assure that property owners 
provide safe, affordable housing to recipients according to guidelines established by HUD. 
 

 Hardest Hit Fund: This fund accounts for resources made available from the U.S. Treasury to assist 
Kentucky homeowners. The Unemployment Bridge Program assists Kentucky homeowners who have 
lost their jobs or suffered a reduction in income to keep their homes. The Hardest Hit Fund Down 
Payment Assistant Program provides down payment assistance to qualified borrowers to purchase a 
primary residence in targeted counties in Kentucky. Under both of these programs, the proceeds are 
loaned to eligible homeowners and are secured by a five-year forgivable lien on the recipient's home. 
The program funds are available to all lenders and all borrowers who meet the program criteria.  The 
fund balance of both programs is restricted for use only by these programs and if any fund balance 
exists at the end of the programs' duration such balance will be returned to the U.S. Treasury. 

 
Other Housing Funds:  These funds account for other minor housing assistance program funds made 
available through various federal and state resources. 
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Note B--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Proprietary Funds: Financial activities operated similarly to private business enterprises and financed 
through fees and charges assessed primarily to users of the loan and other lender services are presented 
as proprietary funds.  Each proprietary fund is considered a major fund. The Corporation’s proprietary funds 
are: 

 
General Funds:  These funds account for proprietary fund (1) activities related to the development and 
administration of corporate financial programs, (2) corporate-owned assets and (3) any business-type 
activities of the Corporation not included in the Housing Revenue Bond indenture or construction loans, 
including the Secondary Market Mortgage Purchase program.  Fund net position is generally 
unrestricted. 

 
Housing Revenue Bond Funds:  These funds account for the proceeds from the sale of Housing 
Revenue Bonds, the debt service requirements of the bond indebtedness, and mortgage loans and 
mortgage-backed securities acquired with bond proceeds to finance the purchase of single-family 
residential housing as well as the construction and long-term financing of multi-family residential 
housing.  Fund net position is restricted as to use by the terms of the Housing Revenue Bond Indenture. 

 
Housing Development Fund:  This fund accounts for construction loan proceeds for the production 
of both single-family and multi-family residential loans, as well as any investments made with proceeds 
currently not loaned.  Fund net position is restricted to use within the fund by the enabling legislation 
that created the fund.  This fund was created by the same enabling legislation as the Corporation as 
previously disclosed in Note A. 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash consists of cash held by depository institutions and a trustee in the 
Corporation's name.  The Corporation’s cash and cash equivalents include money market funds utilized for 
operations, not for investment policy purposes.   
 
Investment and Mortgage-Backed Securities: Investment and mortgage-backed securities are stated at fair 
value, while money market funds are carried at amortized cost.  Unrealized gains (losses) due to changes 
in the fair value of investment and mortgage-backed securities are included under the caption operating 
revenues in the Corporation's statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position. 
 
Historically, the Corporation securitized a large portion of its government insured housing mortgage loans 
into mortgage-backed securities through the Government National Mortgage Association (“GNMA”).  The 
Corporation retains ownership of $89,092 of the securities and retains the servicing rights to the underlying 
housing mortgage loans.   
 
Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses: Housing mortgage loans, housing construction loans and other 
loans are stated at remaining principal balances, plus accrued interest, less allowance for loan losses. 
Housing mortgage loans held for sale are at fair value. The allowance for loan losses is established through 
a provision for loan losses charged to expense.  Loans are charged against the allowance when 
management believes that the collectability of principal is unlikely.  The allowance is an amount that 
management believes will be adequate to absorb losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible, 
based on evaluations of the collectability of loans and prior loan loss experience.   
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Note B--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
The evaluations take into consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the loan 
portfolio, overall portfolio quality, loan guarantees, review of specific problem loans, and current economic 
conditions that may affect a borrower's ability to pay.  Accrual of interest is discontinued on a loan when 
management believes, after considering the economic climate, business conditions and collection efforts, 
that a borrower's financial condition is such that collection of interest is doubtful. 
 
Mortgage Banking Revenue:  Mortgage banking revenue includes revenue derived from mortgages 
originated and subsequently sold, with servicing retained.  The primary components are gains and losses 
on mortgage sales and servicing revenue. 
 
Mortgage Servicing Rights:  Mortgage Servicing Rights (“MSRs”) are initially capitalized at fair value as 
separate assets when loans are sold, and servicing is retained. The corporation determines the fair value 
by estimating the present value of the assets’ future cash flows. For purposes of evaluating and measuring 
impairment of capitalized mortgage servicing rights, the Corporation stratifies such rights based upon the 
predominant risk characteristics of the underlying loans.  The Corporation determined those risk 
characteristics to be loan type, portfolio seasoning and interest rate.   
 
Real Estate Owned and Related Receivables:  Real estate owned arises from foreclosures or other 
mortgage default-related actions on properties pledged as collateral on mortgage loans.  Real estate owned 
is recorded at the lesser of unpaid principal balance plus accrued interest on the loans as of the date the 
loans became real estate owned, plus subsequent expenses incurred less any insurance or other loan 
related payments received or fair value less costs to sell.  Because a substantial majority of all such loans 
are guaranteed, based on the Corporation’s past experience, it is anticipated that the Corporation will 
recover a majority of the unpaid principal balances of the loans through proceeds arising from the sale of 
such property or receipt of applicable guarantee proceeds.  

Capital Assets: Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and are reported in the 
business-type activities column in the Corporation-wide statement of net position.  Maintenance, repairs, 
and minor replacements are charged to expense as incurred; major improvements are capitalized.  The 
cost of assets sold or retired, and the related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts 
and any resulting gain or loss is included in income.  Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method 
over the estimated useful lives of the assets: 
 
 Buildings   30 to 40 years 
 Equipment     3 to 10 years 
 
Net Position: Net Position is displayed in three components as follows: 
 

 Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, less the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 Restricted - This consists of balances associated with activities that are legally restricted by outside 
parties or by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  For the government-wide 
financial statements, net position is reported as restricted when constraints placed on net asset use 
are either: (1) externally imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments or (2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions 
or enabling legislation.   

 Unrestricted - This consists of balances that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "invested 
in capital assets." 
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Note B--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Governmental Funds Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures: Due to the fact that the 
Corporation’s governmental funds account for intragovernmental revenues received under the terms of 
grant agreements and the related grant expenditures, all governmental fund activities are reflected as 
restricted; therefore, the Corporation has not adopted a written policy regarding the classification of 
governmental fund balance categories. 
 
Interfund Eliminations: Interfund receivables and payables arising primarily from allocations of 
administrative charges among the appropriate funds are eliminated in the governmental and business-type 
activities columns of the Corporation-wide statement of net position.   
 
Debt Issuance Costs and Bond Premiums and Discounts: Debt issuance costs are expensed in the year 
the debt is incurred.  There were no debt issuance costs incurred in 2020. Bond premiums and discounts 
on revenue bonds are amortized by the effective interest method over the term of the related debt.  Revenue 
bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.   
 
Debt Refundings: The Corporation accounts for debt refundings in accordance with GASB Statement 
No.63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflow of Resources and Net 
Position and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.     
 
Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (“OPEB”):  For purposes of measuring the net pension and 
net OPEB liabilities, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
and OPEB, and pension and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of KERS and 
additions to/deductions from the KERS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as 
they are reported by KERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 

Program Revenues: Program revenues in the Corporation-wide statement of activities are reported in two 
categories including (1) charges for services and (2) program-specific operating grants and contributions.  
Charges for services include all revenues from loans, investments, servicing, financing, and program 
administration fees received in connection with administering the Corporation’s various loan programs.  
Program-specific operating grants and contributions include revenues from mandatory and voluntary 
nonexchange transactions with other governments and organizations that are restricted for use in a 
particular program and interest earned on unspent grant proceeds.  The Corporation’s policy is to apply 
restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted net position 
are available.   
 
Revenue and Expense Recognition of Proprietary Funds: The Corporation records all revenues derived 
from and related expenses incurred for loans, investments, servicing, financing and program administration 
as operating revenues and expenses since they are generated from the Corporation’s daily operations 
needed to carry out its statutory purpose.   
 
Origination and Commitment Fees: Origination fees relating to permanently financed multi-family loans are 
recognized in the year of origination.  Commitment fees charged to mortgage originators to reserve funds 
for permanently financed single-family loans are recognized in the period of exercise. 
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Note B--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting periods.  Estimates used in the 
preparation of the financial statements are based on various factors including the current interest rate 
environment and the general strength of Kentucky's economy.  Changes in the overall interest rate 
environment can significantly affect the carrying value of the Corporation's investments and mortgage-
backed securities.  Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term 
relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses and the fair value of investment and mortgage-
backed securities.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Implementation of Accounting Standards:  The Corporation adopted no new accounting standards during 
the year. 
 
GASB standards that are under evaluation include: 
 

 GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, is effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021,  
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, is effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, GASB 
Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period, 
is effective for the year ending June 30, 2022, GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interest, is 
effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021,GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt 
Obligations, is effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 
2020, is effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement 
of Interbank Offered Rates, is effective for the year ending June 30, 2021, GASB Statement No. 
94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements, is 
effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based 
Information Technology Arrangements, is effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, and 
GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32, is effective for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.   The Corporation has not yet adopted these standards and is 
evaluating the impact they may have on its financial statements. 
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Note C--Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 
 
Kentucky Revised Statutes authorize the Corporation to invest in obligations guaranteed by the 
Commonwealth of Kentucky, the United States, or their agencies, provided however, that the return on 
such investments shall not violate any rulings of the Internal Revenue Service regarding the investment of 
the proceeds of any federally tax-exempt bond issue. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents: At June 30, 2020, the carrying amount of the Corporation’s cash and cash 
equivalents was $108,823 and the bank balance was $108,086.  The difference between the carrying 
amount and the bank balance is a result of transactions in transit.  Of the $108,086 bank balance, $76,442 
was covered by federal depository insurance and $31,644 was collateralized.  For the funds collateralized 
by the financial institutions, the collateral equals or exceeds at least 102% of the value of the uninsured 
funds on deposit as required by the Corporation’s investment policies, and the collateral is held by the 
financial institutions or a third party in the name of the Corporation. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents of approximately $98,718 are restricted for government programs, payment of 
bond principal and interest, payment of principal and interest on mortgage-backed securities and for 
payment of taxes, insurance and other escrowed items on the Corporation’s serviced loans. Of the above 
amount, $9,607 is restricted in governmental activities and $89,111 is restricted in business-type activities.  
Within the business-type activities, the restricted amounts are almost entirely in the general fund. 
 
Investment and Mortgage-Backed Securities: At June 30, 2020 the Corporation has the following: 
 

 
 

Interest Rate Risk: In general, the Corporation’s investment strategy is designed to match the life of the 
asset with the date of its related liability.  With this strategy, investments would be expected to reach 
maturity with limited realized gains or losses.  The Corporation’s investment policy does allow trades of 
existing securities in circumstances where extension or contraction of maturity date or conversion from one 
allowable investment to another produces additional value through increased yield or capital gains.  The 
fair value of the Corporation's investments in mortgage-backed securities is highly sensitive to volatility in 
interest rates. 

Effective
Duration

Investment Type Fair Value (in Years)

U.S. government-sponsored enterprises 94,853$          0.51
Mortgage-backed securities 56,015            0.75
Money market funds 97,969            0.00
       Total Investment and Mortgage-Backed Securities 248,837          1.26

Less amounts shown as current assets 98,368            

Noncurrent Investment and Mortgage-Backed Securities   150,469$        
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Note C--Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 
 
Credit Risk: The Corporation’s investment policy defines the types of investments available to the 
Corporation.  Investments, including the underlying securities for money market funds, are held by the 
Corporation’s trustee in the Corporation’s name.  The Corporation’s investments are rated as follows by 
Moody’s Investors Service at June 30, 2020: 
 

 
Custodial Credit Risk: For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of 
the counterparty, the Corporation would not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 
securities that are in possession of an outside party.  Substantially all of the Corporation’s investments are 
held in the name of the Corporation by a trustee. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk: The Corporation’s investment policy places no limit on the amount the 
Corporation may invest in any one issuer.  Investments in issuers exceeding 5% of the Corporation’s 
portfolio at June 30, 2020 consist of the following: 
 

 
 

The GNMA investments consist of mortgage-backed securities, the performance of which is guaranteed by 
GNMA.  As servicer of GNMA securities with a book value of $7,720 as of June 30, 2020, included in the 
above amount, the Corporation is exposed to minimal residual risk on the underlying loans in the event, 
that upon default of a loan, the insurance or guarantee received is insufficient to fully reimburse the 
Corporation. 
 

Moody's
Investment Type Rating

Mortgage-backed securities Aaa
U.S. government-sponsored enterprises Aaa
Money market funds Not rated

Percentage
Issuer Fair Value of Portfolio

Dreyfus 97,969$          39%
U.S. government-sponsored enterprises 94,853            38%
GNMA 56,015            23%
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Note C--Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued) 
 
The Corporation categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles.  The Corporation has the following recurring fair value 
measurements as of June 30, 2020: 

 
 
Debt and equity securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices quoted in 
active markets for those securities.  Debt securities classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are 
valued using a matrix pricing technique.  Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’ 
relationship to benchmark quoted prices.  Total investments by amortized cost consist of amounts invested 
in overnight money market funds. 

 

Note D--Housing Mortgage Loans 
 
At June 30, 2020, housing mortgage loans consist of the following: 
 

 
 

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs

Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments by fair value level:

U.S. government-sponsored enterprises 94,853$         -$                       94,853$           -$                      
Mortgage-backed securities 56,015         -                       56,015            -                      

     Total investments by fair value 150,868 -$                       150,868$         -$                      

Investments by amortized cost 97,969         

     Total investments 248,837$       

Fair Value Measurements Using:

Housing Revenue Bond Funds:
  Single-family (A) 320,696$    
  Multifamily (B) 22,906       

Total Housing Revenue Bond Funds 343,602     
General Funds (C) 129,319     
     Total Principal 472,921     

Add accrued interest receivable on loans 1,240        
     Total Principal and Accrued Interest 474,161     

Less allowance for loan losses 13,535       
     Net Housing Mortgage Loans 460,626

Less amount shown as current assets 27,441       

     Noncurrent Housing Mortgage Loans    433,185$    
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Note D--Housing Mortgage Loans (Continued) 
 
Additional information related to loans includes: 
 

Note (A)  Single-family includes $308,321 in federally insured or guaranteed loans, $10,807 of non-
insured loans with initial loan-to-value ratios less than 90%, and $1,568 of loans backed by 
private mortgage insurance.   

Note (B) Multifamily includes $19,114 in federally insured or guaranteed loans and $3,792 in non-
insured loans. 

Note (C) General Funds include $38,750 in federally insured or guaranteed loans and $90,569 in 
non-insured loans. 

 
 
Note E--Other Loan Related Activities 
 
Housing Mortgage Loans Held for Sale:  These loans are first mortgage loans pending sale into the 
secondary market and are secured by single-family residences.   The fair value of these loans is determined 
using quoted secondary market prices.  This is considered Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. 
 
Housing Construction Loans: These loans are primarily secured by first mortgages and are repayable at 
maturity or at the date of the sale of the property, whichever occurs first.  Such loans are net of an allowance 
for loan losses of $950. 
 
Other Loans: These loans are primarily non-secured loans made to agencies, organizations, and individuals 
to construct or preserve affordable housing in Kentucky.  Such loans are net of an allowance for loan losses 
of $1,828. 
 
Real Estate Owned and Related Receivables:  This asset arises from foreclosures or other mortgage 
default-related actions on properties pledged as collateral on mortgage loans.  
 
Loan Commitments: At June 30, 2020, the Corporation is committed to make single-family mortgage loans 
and housing construction loans totaling $117,651 and $237, respectively.  The Corporation had $117,680 
in outstanding commitments to sell single-family loans at June 30, 2020.   
 
 
Note F-- Loan Servicing 
 
In addition to the GNMA mortgage-backed securities portfolios that the Corporation services for its own 
indenture (See Note C), the Corporation was servicing the following for other investors at June 30, 2020: 
 
  

Number
Servicing Type of Loans Amounts

GNMA mortgage-backed securities 15,339        1,630,090$  
Fannie Mae mortgage-backed securities 817             47,487        
Fannie Mae whole loans 6,131          762,148       

22,287        2,439,725$  
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Note F-- Loan Servicing (Continued) 
 
Included in Fannie Mae mortgage-backed securities totals are loans totaling $6,126 on which the 
Corporation has retained full default risk on the underlying loans and additional loans totaling $9,329 on 
which the Corporation has retained default risk subject to a stop loss agreement with Fannie Mae.  Included 
in Fannie Mae whole loan amounts are loans totaling approximately $105,624 for which the Corporation 
has retained default risk for the twelve months following the origination date. 
 
Servicing rights totaling $6,179 are amortized in proportion to, and over the period of, estimated servicing 
income and are included in other noncurrent assets. 
 
 
Note G--Capital Assets 
 
Major classes of capital assets at June 30, 2020 and activity during the year follows: 
 
All depreciation expense was incurred for business-type activities and was included in the administrative 
function category in the Corporation-wide statement of activities. 
 

 
 
Note H--Lines of Credit 
 
The Corporation’s lines of credit at June 30, 2020 and activity during the year follows: 
 

 
 
Both lines of credit are unsecured and are used for the purchase of mortgage loans pending issuance of 
new Housing Revenue Bonds or sale to the secondary market or to other investors, and to purchase certain 
FHA and RHS loans pending receipt of insurance/guarantee payments from the respective agencies.  Line 
of Credit 2 may also be used for advances for principal and interest account shortages and tax and 
insurance account shortages associated with the Corporation’s single-family loan servicing. 
 

Balance Retirements Balance
July 1, and June 30,

Business-Type Activities 2019 Additions Dispositions 2020

Land 1,089$        -$               -$               1,089$        
Buildings 5,741          186             -                 5,927          
Equipment 3,876          271             (624)            3,523          
Less accumulated depreciation (7,252)         (343) 624 (6,971)         

     Net Capital Assets 3,454$        114$           -$               3,568$        

Balance Repayments Balance
July 1, and June 30,

Business-Type Activities 2019 Borrowings Dispositions 2020

Loan Warehousing Line of Credit 1 4,000$      213,995$     213,120$     4,875$       
Loan Warehousing Line of Credit 2 25,000      95,208         117,208       3,000         

29,000$     309,203$     330,328$     7,875$       
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Note H--Lines of Credit (Continued) 
 
Loan Warehousing Line of Credit 1 provides for borrowings up to $25,000, bears interest based on one-
month LIBOR rounded up to the nearest 1/8% plus 60 basis points (.85% at June 30, 2020), matures on 
June 30, 2021, had $20,125 of unused credit at June 30, 2020, and contains a non-usage fee of .15% of 
the unused amount.  Loan Warehousing Line of Credit 2 provides for borrowings up to $65,000, bears 
interest based on the greater of one-month LIBOR or 50 basis points, plus 125 basis points (1.75% at June 
30, 2020), matures on June 30, 2021, had $62,000 unused credit at June 30, 2020, and contains a non-
usage fee of .25% of the unused amount. 
 
In addition to requiring timely payment of all interest and principal amounts when due, the agreements 
between the Corporation and its line of credit lenders have provisions requiring periodic reporting of 
financial information and maintenance of a minimum public debt rating, the failure to comply with which, if 
not timely remedied, could result in the lender calling the debt immediately due and payable. 
 
 
Note I--Revenue Bonds and Other Noncurrent Liabilities 
 
Revenue Bonds: Revenue bonds at June 30, 2020 and the activity for the year then ended consist of the 
following:  

 

Original Balance Balance Amount Due
Face July 1, Repaid/ June 30, Within

Amount 2019 Issued Retired 2020 One Year

Housing Revenue Bonds:
2006 Series O:

2020-2036, variable $ 29,035       $ 14,395       $ -                  $ 490            $ 13,905       $ 530            
2006 Series T:

2020-2038, variable 23,300       7,900         -                  230            7,670         240            
2006 Series W:

2020-2038, variable 38,380       11,260       -                  360            10,900       355            
2007 Series J:

2020-2038, variable 17,130       12,235       -                  370            11,865       380            
2007 Series O:

2020, variable 10,000       5,635         -                  165            5,470         160            
2009 Series B:

2020, 4.625% 60,000       5,310         -                  5,310         -                  -                  
2009 Series C, Sub series C-4:

2028-2042, 2.52% 30,000       16,790       -                  1,940         14,850       -                  
2010 Series A:

2020, 3.45% to 3.65% 40,000       815            -                  815            -                  -                  
2010 Series B:

2020, 3.45% to 5.00% 40,000       3,940         -                  3,940         -                  -                  
2010 Series C:

2020, 4.375% to 4.625% 10,000       5,410         -                  5,410         -                  -                  
2010 Series D:

2020, 4.25% to 4.40% 46,000       5,425         -                  5,425         -                  -                  
2010 Series E:

2020, 3.625% to 4.50% 20,000       8,925         -                  8,925         -                  -                  
2011 Series A:

2021-2028, 4.00% to 5.00% 20,000       3,865         -                  1,760         2,105         435            
2011 Series B:

2021-2028, 3.00% to 4.25% 20,000       4,555         -                  1,770         2,785         675            
2012 Series A:

2021-2034, 3.368% to 4.268% 187,755    76,330       -                  14,620       61,710       5,590         
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Note I--Revenue Bonds and Other Noncurrent Liabilities (Continued) 
 

 
 
 
As indicated in the above table, bond issues totaling $49,810 have variable rates of interest.  These rates 
are determined periodically by bond remarketing agents as the minimum interest rate that would result in 
the sale of the variable-rate bonds at a price equal to the principal amount plus accrued interest thereon 
not to exceed a range of 18% to 21%.  Surplus balances in the Fund Net Position of the Bond Debt Service 
Reserve Fund totaling $65,000 have been reserved to provide self-liquidity on these bonds, which will be 
utilized to retire the bonds in the event they cannot be remarketed in the capital markets. 
 
The revenue bonds are collateralized by the underlying mortgages as well as mortgage-backed securities 
financed by the proceeds from the revenue bonds, and by the pledge of the principal and interest collections 
received from these mortgages and securities. 
 
In addition to requiring timely payment of all interest and principal amounts when due, and the maintenance 
of a required minimum Bond Debt Service Reserve Fund balance, the trust documents governing the 
administration of the Corporation’s bonds outstanding require numerous reporting and tax compliance 
provisions, the failure to comply with which could result in, among other things, the trustee assuming all 
duties with respect to bond administration from the Corporation and taking any other actions necessary to 
protect the interests of the bondholders. 
 

 
 

Original Balance Balance Amount Due
Face July 1, Repaid/ June 30, Within

Amount 2019 Issued Retired 2020 One Year

Housing Revenue Bonds:

2013 Series A:
2041, 3.00% $ 52,940       $ 20,900       $ -                  $ 20,900       $ -                  $ -                  

2013 Series B:
2041, 3.00% 54,920       24,760       -                  24,760       -                  -                  

2013 Series C:
2021-2024, 3.022% to 3.520% 36,470       15,150       -                  3,825         11,325       1,955         

2013 Series D:
2024-2033, 3.20% to 3.75% 49,410       19,370       -                  3,685         15,685       -                  

2013 Series E:
2021-2023, 2.75% to 3.05% 7,590         2,620         -                  1,045         1,575         485            

2014 Series A:
2021-2034, 2.7% to 4.296% 61,445       39,795       -                  7,130         32,665       2,350         

2014 Series B:
2021-2037, 2.735% to 4.097% 30,000       20,215       -                  1,975         18,240       565            

2016 Series A:
2021-2040, 2.176% to 3.86% 72,465       56,930       -                  7,590         49,340       1,175         

2016 Series B:
2021-2038, 2.362% to 4.00% 41,110       32,320       -                  3,940         28,380       805            

   Total Housing 
       Revenue Bonds $ 997,950    414,850    $ -                  $ 126,380    288,470    $ 15,700       

   Unamortized premium 1,672         1,132         

   Net Revenue Bonds   $ 416,522    $ 289,602    
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Note I--Revenue Bonds and Other Noncurrent Liabilities (Continued) 
 
As of June 30, 2020, aggregate debt service requirements of the Corporation’s debt are as shown in the 
table below.  These amounts assume that current interest rates on variable-rate bonds will remain the same 
for their term; as these rates vary, interest payments on variable-rate bonds will vary.   
 

 

The Corporation has routinely exercised early redemption options and has retired various bonds prior to 
their scheduled maturity dates with funds available for that purpose.  
 
Interest expense was entirely incurred in business-type activities and was included in the bond financed 
loan programs function and administrative function in the Corporation-wide statement of activities. 
 
Other Noncurrent Liabilities: Other noncurrent liabilities had the following activity during the year: 
 

 
 
 

Total
Principal Interest Debt
Payments Payments Service

Fiscal years ending June 30,
2021 15,700$       8,815$        24,515$       
2022 30,270         7,909          38,179        
2023 25,845         7,010          32,855        
2024 22,345         6,231          28,576        
2025 19,715         5,521          25,236        

Five years ending June 30,
2026-2030 80,980         18,901        99,881        
2031-2035 63,170         7,661          70,831        
2036-2040 28,745         1,857          30,602        
2041-2045 1,700          43               1,743          

288,470$     63,948$       352,418$     

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,

Account 2019 Additions Reductions 2020

Other noncurrent liabilities 14,162$   2,385$     (559)$        15,988$   
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Note J--Conduit Debt Obligations 
 
The Corporation uses its tax-exempt debt issuing authority to provide financial assistance to private-sector 
developers for the acquisition and rehabilitation, or the construction of multi-family housing projects serving 
low-to-moderate income households.  The debt is collateralized by revenues generated by the properties 
financed and is repayable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans and any specific 
third-party credit enhancement associated with the individual financings.  Through June 30, 2020, conduit 
debt obligations have been issued for 55 multi-family projects totaling approximately $657,022.  The debt 
does not constitute a liability or a pledge of faith and credit of the Corporation and, accordingly, has not 
been reported in the Corporation-wide financial statements. 
 
 
Note K--Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits Plan – Cost Sharing – KERS 
  
Kentucky Employees Retirement System 
 
Plan Description - The Corporation contributes to the Kentucky Employees’ Retirement System (KERS), a 
cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Kentucky Retirement 
Systems (KRS), an agency of the Commonwealth.  Under the provisions of Kentucky Revised Statute 
Section 61.645, the Board of Trustees (“KRS Board”) of KRS administers the KERS, County Employees 
Retirement System and State Police Retirement System.  Although the assets of the systems are invested 
as a whole, each system’s assets are used only for the payment of benefits to members of that plan, and a 
pro rata share of administrative costs, in accordance with the provisions of Kentucky Revised Statute 
Sections 16.555, 61.570, and 78.630. 
   
KRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes audited financial statements and audited 
required supplementary information for KERS.  The report may be obtained by writing to Kentucky 
Retirement Systems, Perimeter Park West, 1260 Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601, or it may be 
found at the KRS website at www.kyret.ky.gov. 
 
Basis of Accounting: For purposes of measuring the net pension and OPEB liabilities, deferred outflow 
of resources and deferred inflow of resources related to pensions and OPEB, pension and OPEB expense, 
information about the fiduciary net position of KERS and additions to/deductions from KERS’s fiduciary net 
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by KERS. For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
Pension Benefits Provided:  The information below summarizes the major retirement benefit provisions 
of the KERS-Non-Hazardous Plan (“Plan”).  It is not intended to be, nor should it be interpreted as, a 
complete statement of all benefit provisions: 
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Note K--Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits Plan – Cost Sharing – KERS        
(Continued) 

  
Non-Hazardous 

 Tier 1 
Participation Prior to  

9/1/2008 

Tier 2 
Participation 

9/1/2008 through 12/31/13 

Tier 3 
Participation 

1/1/2014 
    
Benefit Formula Final Compensation X Benefit Factor X Years of Service Cash Balance Plan 
    
Final Compensation Average of the highest 5 fiscal 

years (must contain at least 48 
months).  Includes lump-sum 
compensation payments (before 
and at retirement). 

5 complete fiscal years 
immediately preceding retirement; 
each year must contain 12 
months.  Lump-sum 
compensation payments (before 
and at retirement) are not to be 
included in creditable 
compensation. 

No Final Compensation 

    
Benefit Factor 1.97% or 2.0% for those retiring 

with service for all months 
between 1/1998 and 1/1999. 

10 years or less = 1.10%. Greater 
than 10 years, but no more than 
20 years = 1.30%. Greater than 
20 years, but no more than 26 
years = 1.50%. Greater than 26 
years, but no more than 30 years 
= 1.75%. Additional years above 
30 = 2.00% (2.00% benefit factor 
only applies to service earned in 
excess of 30 years). 

No benefit factor. A life annuity 
can be calculated in accordance 
with actuarial assumptions and 
methods adopted by the board 
based on member’s accumulated 
account balance. 

    
Cost of Living Adjustment 
(COLA) 

No COLA unless authorized by the Legislature.  If authorized, the COLA is limited to 1.5%. This impacts all 
retirees regardless of Tier. 

    
Unreduced Retirement Benefit Any age with 27 years of service.  

Age 65 with 48 months of service. 
Money purchase for age 65 with 
less than 48 months based on 
contributions and interest. 

Rule of 87: Member must be at least age 57 and age plus earned 
service must equal 87 years at retirement to retire under this provision.  
Age 65 with 5 years of earned service.  No month purchased 
calculations. 

    
Reduced Retirement Benefit Any age with 25 years of service. 

Age 55 with 5 years of service. 
Age 60 with 10 years of service.  
Excludes purchased service 
(exception: refunds, omitted, free 
military). 

No reduced retirement benefit. 

 
OPEB Benefits Provided:  The information below summarizes the major retirement benefit provisions of 
the Plan.  It is not intended to be, nor should it be interpreted as, a complete statement of all benefit 
provisions: 
 
Insurance Tier 1: Participation began before 7/1/2003 
 
Benefit Eligibility: Recipient of a retirement allowance 
 
Benefit:  The percentage of member premiums paid by the retirement system are dependent on the 

number of years of service.  Benefits also include duty disability retirements, duty death in 
service, non-duty death in service and surviving spouse of a retiree. 

 
Insurance Tier 2: Participation began on or after 7/1/2003, but before 9/1/2008 
 
Benefit Eligibility: Recipient of a retirement allowance with at least 120 months of service at retirement 
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Benefit:  The system provides a monthly contribution subsidy of $10 (Non-hazardous) and $15 

(Hazardous) for each year of earned service.  The monthly contribution is increased by 1.5% 
each July 1.  Benefits also include duty disability retirements, duty death in service and non-
duty death in service. 

 
Insurance Tier 3: Participation began on or after 9/1/2008 
 
Benefit Eligibility: Recipient of a retirement allowance with at least 180 months of service at retirement 
 
Benefit:  Tier 3 insurance benefits are identical to Tier 2, except Tier 3 members are required to have at 

least 180 months of service in order to be eligible. 
 
Contributions:  The Corporation is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate determined by 
Statute.  Per Kentucky Revised Statute Section 78.545(33) normal contribution and past service 
contribution rates shall be determined by the KRS Board on the basis of an annual valuation on the last 
preceding July 1 of a new biennium.  The KRS Board may amend contribution rates as of the first day of 
July of the second year of a biennium, if it is determined on the basis of a subsequent actuarial valuation 
that amended contribution rates are necessary to satisfy requirements determined in accordance with 
actuarial bases adopted by the KRS Board.   
 
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, The Corporation contributed 49.47% (41.06% allocated 
to pension and 8.41% allocated to OPEB), as set by KRS, of each employee's creditable compensation.  
Administrative costs of KRS are financed through employer contributions and investment earnings.   
 
The Corporation has met 100% of the contribution funding requirement for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2020 and 2019. Total current year contributions recognized by the Plan were $5,778 ($4,796 related to 
pension and $982 related to OPEB) for the year ended June 30, 2020. The OPEB contributions amount 
does not include the implicit subsidy reported in the amount of $189. 
 
Members whose participation began before 9/1/2008: 
 
Contributions equal 5% of all creditable compensation. Interest paid on the members’ accounts is currently 
2.5%; and per statute shall not be less than 2.0%. Member is entitled to a full refund of contributions with 
interest. 
 
Members whose participation began on or after 9/1/2008: 
 
Contributions equal 6%, with 5% being credited to the member’s account and 1% deposited to the KRS 
401(h) Account. Interest paid on the members’ accounts will be set at 2.5%.  Member is entitled to 
a full refund of contributions and interest in their individual account, however, the 1% contributed to 
the insurance fund is non-refundable. 
 
Members whose participation began on or after 1/1/2014: 
 
Contributions equal 6%, with 5% being credited to the member’s account and 1% deposited to the KRS 
401(h) a ccount. Interest paid on the members’ accounts will be set at 2.5%.  Member is entitled to a 
full refund of contributions and interest in their individual account, however, the 1% contributed to  
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the insurance fund is non-refundable.  The employer contribution rate is set annually by the Board based 
on an actuarial valuation.  Each month, when employer contributions are received, an employer pay credit 
is deposited to the member’s account.  A member’s account is credited with a 4% employer pay credit.  The 
employer pay credit represents a portion of the employer contribution. 
 
Pension Information 
 
Total Pension Liability:  The total pension liability ("TPL") was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
June 30, 2018, rolled-forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2019, using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 

Price Inflation    2.30% 
Salary increases   4.40%, average, including inflation 
Payroll growth assumption  0.00% 
Investment rate of return  5.25%, net of pension plan investment expense, including 

inflation 
 
The mortality table used for active members is PUB-2010 General Mortality table, projected with the 
ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2010.  For healthy retired 
members and beneficiaries the mortality table is a system-specific, gender-specific mortality table based 
on mortality experience from 2013-2018, projected with ultimate rates from MP-2014 mortality improvement 
scale using a base year of 2019. For disabled members, the mortality table used is a PUB-2010 Disabled 
Mortality table, with a 4-year set-forward for both male and female rates, projected with the ultimate rates 
from MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2010.  There is some margin in the current 
mortality tables for possible future improvement in mortality rates and that margin will be reviewed again 
when the next experience investigation is conducted. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 
valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2013 – June 30, 
2018. 
 
Discount rate assumptions:  
 
(a) Discount Rate:  The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.25%, which 

was not changed from the prior year. 
 
(b) Projected Cash Flows:  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed 

the local employers and plan members would contribute the statutorily determined contribution rate 
of projected compensation over the remaining 24-year amortization period of the unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability. The actuarial determined contribution rate is adjusted to reflect the phase in of 
anticipated gains on actuarial value of assets over the first four years of the projection period. 

 
 (c) Long-Term Rate of Return:  The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of 

the regular experience studies prepared every five years for the System. The most recent analysis, 
performed for the period covering fiscal years 2014 through 2018 is outlined in a report dated April 
18, 2019. However, the Board of KRS has the authority to review the assumptions on a more 
frequent basis and adopt new assumptions prior to the next scheduled experience study. The long-
term expected rate of return was determined by using a building-block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rate of returns are developed for each asset class. The 
ranges are combined by weighting the expected future real rate of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage. 
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(d) Municipal Bond Rate:  The discount rate determination does not use a municipal bond rate. 
 
(e) Periods of Projected Benefit Payments: The long-term assumed rate of return was applied to all 

periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
(f) Assumed Asset Allocation:  The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates 

of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:  
 

 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan assets was established by the KRS Board of 
Trustees at 5.25% based on a blending of the factors described above. 
 
 (g) Sensitivity Analysis:  This paragraph requires disclosure of the sensitivity of the net pension 

liability to changes in the discount rate.  The following presents the Corporation's allocated portion 
of the net pension liability ("NPL") of the Plan, calculated using the discount rate of 5.25% as well 
as what the Corporation's allocated portion of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (4.25%) or 1 percentage-point higher (6.25%) 
than the current rate:  

 
  

Long-Term
Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

Growth 53.50%
US Equity 15.75% 4.30%
Non-US Equity 15.75% 4.80%
Private Equity 7.00% 6.65%
Specialty Credit/High Yield 15.00% 2.60%

Liquidity 23.50%
Core Bonds 20.50% 1.35%
Cash 3.00% 0.20%

Diversifying Strategies 23.00%
Real Estate 5.00% 4.85%
Opportunistic 3.00% 2.97%
Real Return 15.00% 4.10%

     Total 100.00%

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase

(4.25%) (5.25%) (6.25%)
Corporation's allocated portion
   of net pension liability 113,896$     99,354$       87,336$       
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Employer's Portion of the Collective Net Pension Liability:  The Corporation's proportionate share of 
the Plan’s net pension liability, as indicated in the prior table, is $99,354, or approximately 0.70%.  The  
proportionate share from the prior year was 0.79%. The net pension liabilities were distributed based on 
the employers’ covered payroll provided for fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. 
 
Measurement Date:  June 30, 2018 is the actuarial valuation date and June 30, 2019 is the measurement 
date upon which the total pension liability is based. 
 
Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms:  There were several assumption changes resulting from 
the 2018 Actuarial Experience Study including slight changes in salary increase assumptions, a change in 
the mortality tables to reflect updated mortality experience, and nominal changes in retirement, 
termination/withdrawal, and disability incidence rates.  The changes resulted in a less than 5% increase in 
the unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities and employer contribution rate, and a less than 5% decrease in 
the Plan’s funded ratio.  There were no benefit changes since the last actuarial report.  
 
House Bill 1, which passed during the 2019 special legislative session, allows certain employers in the 
KERS nonhazardous plan to elect to cease participating in the system as of June 30, 2020. Since 
employer’s elections were unknown at the time of the actuarial valuation and the legislation was enacted 
after the June 30, 2019 measurement date, no adjustments were made to the Total Pension Liability to 
reflect this legislation. 
 
House Bill 265, which passed during the 2018 legislative session, allowed certain employers within the 
KERS non-hazardous system to contribute less than the actuarially determined contribution in the 
2018/2019 fiscal year. Since this is not expected to be an ongoing contribution reduction, determining the 
KERS non-hazardous employers’ proportionate share based on the employers’ actual contributions would 
not be reflective of the employers’ long-term contribution effort. Instead, the proportionate share calculations 
for employers of the KERS non-hazardous system were based on the employers’ covered payroll provided 
for fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, which would result in the same proportionate share allocation if all 
participating employers contributed the same contribution rate. 

 
Changes Since Measurement Date:  There were no changes between the measurement date of the 
collective net pension liability and the employer's reporting date. 
 
Pension Expense: The Corporation was allocated pension expense of $8,065 and $15,545 related to the 
Plan for the years ended June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, respectively.  
 
Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows: Since certain expense items are amortized over closed periods 
each year, the deferred portions of these items must be tracked annually. If the amounts serve to reduce 
pension expense they are labeled as deferred inflows.  If they will increase pension expense, they are 
labeled deferred outflows.  The amortization of these amounts is accomplished on a level dollar basis, with 
no interest included in the deferred amounts.  Experience gains/losses and the impact of changes in 
actuarial assumptions, if any, are amortized over the average remaining service life of the active and 
inactive System members at the beginning of the fiscal year.  Investment gains and losses are amortized 
over a fixed five-year period.   
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 Deferred inflows and outflows as of the Measurement Date include: 

 
 
 
Deferred outflows of resources resulting from employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 
of $4,796 will be recognized as a reduction of net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2021. The 
remainder of the deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources are amortized over three to five years 
with remaining amortization as follows: 
 

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position:  Detailed information about the pension plans' fiduciary net position 
is available in the separately issued pension plan financial reports. 
 
OPEB Information 
 
Total OPEB Liability:  The total other postemployment benefits plan (“OPEB”) was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, rolled-forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2019, using 
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 

Price inflation    2.30% 
Salary increases   4.40%, average, including inflation 
Payroll growth rate   0.00% 
Investment rate of return  6.25% 
Healthcare trend rates: 
Pre-65 Initial trend starting at 7.00% at January 1, 2020 and 

gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05% 
over a period of 12 years. 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 588$               -$                   
Changes of assumptions 3,025              -                     
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 257                460                
Change in proportion and differences between employer contributions and 
   proportionate share of contributions 544                8,042              

4,414              8,502              

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 4,796              -                     

   Total 9,210$            8,502$            

Year ending June 30:
2021 (2,074)$      
2022 (1,943)        
2023 (65)            
2024 (6)              
2025 -                

       Thereafter -                

             Total (4,088)$      
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Note K--Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits Plan – Cost Sharing – KERS        
(Continued) 

 
 
Post-65 Initial trend starting at 5.00% at January 1, 2020 and 

gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05% 
over a period of 10 years.  

 
The mortality table used for active members is PUB-2010 General Mortality table, projected with the 
ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2010.  For healthy retired 
members and beneficiaries the mortality table is a system-specific, gender-specific mortality table based 
on mortality experience from 2013-2018, projected with ultimate rates from MP-2014 mortality improvement 
scale using a base year of 2019. For disabled members, the mortality table used is a PUB-2010 Disabled 
Mortality table, with a 4-year set-forward for both male and female rates, projected with the ultimate rates 
from MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2010.  There is some margin in the current 
mortality tables for possible future improvement in mortality rates and that margin will be reviewed again 
when the next experience investigation is conducted. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 
valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2013 – June 30, 
2018. 
 
Discount rate assumptions: 
 
(a) Discount Rate:  The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 5.73%, which 

was decreased from the 5.86% discount rate used in the prior year. 
 

(b) Projected Cash Flows:  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed 
the local employers and plan members would contribute the actuarially determined contribution 
rate of projected compensation over the remaining 24-year amortization period of the unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability.   

 
(c) Long-Term Rate of Return:  The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of 

the regular experience studies prepared every five years for the System. The most recent analysis, 
performed for the period covering fiscal years 2014 through 2018 is outlined in a report dated April 
18, 2019. However, the Board of KRS has the authority to review the assumptions on a more 
frequent basis and adopt new assumptions prior to the next scheduled experience study. The long-
term expected rate of return was determined by using a building-block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rate of returns are developed for each asset class. The 
ranges are combined by weighting the expected future real rate of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage.  

 
(d) Municipal Bond Rate:  The discount rate determination used a municipal bond rate of 3.13% as 

reported in Fidelity Index’s “20 – Year Municipal GO AA Index” as of June 30, 2019. 
 

(e) Period of Projected Benefit Payments: Current assets, future contributions, and investment 
earnings are projected to be sufficient to pay the projected benefit payments from the retirement 
system. However, the cost associated with the implicit employer subsidy is not currently being 
included in the calculation of the system’s actuarial determined contributions, and it is the actuary’s 
understanding that any cost associated with the implicit subsidy will not be paid out of the system’s 
trust. Therefore, the municipal bond rate was applied to future expected benefit payments 
associated with the implicit subsidy. 
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Note K--Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits Plan – Cost Sharing – KERS        
(Continued) 

 
(f) Assumed Asset Allocations:  The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real 

rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
 

 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan assets was established by the KRS Board 
of Trustees at 6.25% based on a blending of the factors described above. 

 
(g) Sensitivity Analysis: This paragraph requires disclosure of the sensitivity of the net OPEB liability 

to changes in the discount rate and changes in the healthcare cost trend rate.  
 

The following presents the Corporation’s allocated portion of the net OPEB liability of the Plan, 
calculated using the discount rate of 5.73% as well as what the Corporation’s allocated portion of 
the Plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower (4.73%) or 1-percentage-point higher (6.73%) than the current rate for Non-
hazardous: 

 
 

Long-Term
Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

Growth 62.50%
US Equity 18.75% 4.30%
Non-US Equity 18.75% 4.80%
Private Equity 10.00% 6.65%
Specialty Credit/High Yield 15.00% 2.60%

Liquidity 14.50%
Core Bonds 13.50% 1.35%
Cash 1.00% 0.20%

Diversifying Strategies 23.00%
Real Estate 5.00% 4.85%
Opportunistic 3.00% 2.97%
Real Return 15.00% 4.10%

     Total 100.00%

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase

(4.73%) (5.73%) (6.73%)

Corporation's allocated portion
   of net OPEB liability 18,620$        15,637$        13,183$        
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Note K--Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits Plan – Cost Sharing – KERS        
(Continued) 

 
The following presents the Corporation’s allocated portion of the net OPEB liability of the Plan, calculated 
using the healthcare cost trend rate of percent, as well as what the Corporation’s allocated portion of the 
Plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate for Non-hazardous:                    
    

 
 

Employer's Portion of the Collective OPEB Liability:  The Corporation's proportionate share of the 
Plan’s net OPEB liability, as indicated in the prior table, is $15,637, or approximately 0.70% as of June 30, 
2020. The net OPEB liabilities were distributed based on the employers’ covered payroll provided for fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2019. As of June 30, 2019, the Corporation’s proportionate share of the Plan’s net 
OPEB liability was $18,604, or approximately 0.79%. 
 
Measurement Date:  June 30, 2018 is the actuarial valuation date and June 30, 2019 is the measurement 
date upon which the total OPEB liability is based. 
 
Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms: There were several assumption changes resulting from 
the 2018 Actuarial Experience Study including a change in the mortality tables to reflect updated mortality 
experience, and nominal changes in retirement, termination/withdrawal, and disability incidence rates.  The 
changes resulted in an approximate 7% increase in the unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities and employer 
contribution rate, and a less than 5% decrease in the Plan’s funded ratio.  There were no benefit changes 
since the last actuarial report. 
 
House Bill 1, which passed during the 2019 special legislative session, allows certain employers in the 
KERS nonhazardous plan to elect to cease participating in the system as of June 30, 2020. Since 
employer’s elections were unknown at the time of the actuarial valuation and the legislation was enacted 
after the June 30, 2019 measurement date, no adjustments were made to the Total OPEB Liability to 
reflect this legislation. 
 
House Bill 265, which passed during the 2018 legislative session, allowed certain employers within the 
KERS non-hazardous system to contribute less than the actuarially determined contribution in the 
2018/2019 fiscal year. Since this is not expected to be an ongoing contribution reduction, determining the 
KERS non-hazardous employers’ proportionate share based on the employers’ actual contributions would 
not be reflective of the employers’ long-term contribution effort. Instead, the proportionate share calculations 
for employers of the KERS non-hazardous system were based on the employers’ covered payroll provided 
for fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, which would result in the same proportionate share allocation if all 
participating employers contributed the same contribution rate. 
 
Changes Since Measurement Date: There were no changes between the measurement date of the 
collective net OPEB liability and the employer's reporting date. 
 
 
 

Current
1% Healthcare 1%

Decrease Cost Trend Rate Increase

Corporation's allocated portion
   of net OPEB liability 13,285$        15,637$        18,483$        
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Note K--Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits Plan – Cost Sharing – KERS        
(Continued) 

 
OPEB Expense: The Corporation was allocated OPEB expense of $877 and $1,858 related to the Plan for 
the years ended June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, respectively.   
 
Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows:  Since certain expense items are amortized over closed periods 
each year, the deferred portions of these items must be tracked annually. If the amounts serve to reduce 
OPEB expense they are labeled as deferred inflows.  If they will increase OPEB expense they are labeled 
deferred outflows.  The amortization of these amounts is accomplished on a level dollar basis, with no 
interest included in the deferred amounts.  Experience gains/losses and the impact of changes in actuarial 
assumptions, if any, are amortized over the average remaining service life of the active and inactive System 
members at the beginning of the fiscal year.  Investment gains and losses are amortized over a fixed five-
year period.  Deferred inflows and outflows as of the Measurement Date include: 
 

 
 
Deferred outflows of resources resulting from employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 
of $1,171, which include the implicit subsidy reported of $188, will be recognized as a reduction of net 
OPEB liability in the year ending June 30, 2021. The remainder of the deferred outflows and deferred 
inflows of resources are amortized over three to five years with remaining amortization as follows:  
 

 
  
OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position:  Detailed information about the OPEB plans' fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued OPEB plan financial reports. 
 
 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience -$                   2,495$            
Changes of assumptions 2,052              47                  
Changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions
  and proportionate shares of contributions 186                1,874              
Differences between expected and actual investment earnings
  on Plan investments 66                  169                

2,304              4,585              
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,171              -                     

   Total 3,475$            4,585$            

Year ending June 30:
2021 (428)$         
2022 (428)          
2023 (893)          
2024 (532)          
2025 -                

       Thereafter -                

             Total (2,281)$      
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Note L--Risk Management 
 
The Corporation is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters.  These risks are covered by 
various commercial insurance policies.  There have been no reductions in insurance coverage during the 
year ended June 30, 2020.  Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage. 
 
 
Note M--Subsequent Events 
 
The Corporation evaluated events occurring between the end of its most recent fiscal year and September 
30, 2020, the date the financial statements were issued.   
 
 
Note N--Contingencies 
 
In the normal course of operations, the Corporation receives funding from federal and state government 
agencies.  These funds are to be used for designated purposes only.  For government agency grants, if the 
grantor’s review indicates that the funds have not been used for the intended purpose, the grantor may 
request a refund of monies advanced or refuse to reimburse the Corporation for its disbursements.  The 
amount of such future refunds and unreimbursed disbursements, if any, is not expected to be significant.  
Continuation of the Corporation’s grant programs is predicated upon the grantors’ satisfaction that the funds 
provided are being spent as intended and the grantors’ intent to continue their programs.  
 
In addition, the Corporation operates in a heavily regulated environment.  The operations of the Corporation 
are subject to the administrative directives, rules, and regulations of federal and state legislative and regulatory 
agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD.  Such administrative directives, rules, and regulations are subject 
to change by an act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD.  Such changes may occur 
with little or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the additional administrative burden to 
comply with a change. 
 
The COVID-19 pandemic has caused incredible challenges to the world’s health and well-being and the 
resulting economic and social repercussions are on a scale not experienced in generations. It is unclear 
whether fiscal and monetary initiatives will be successful in reducing the impact sufficiently to prevent 
worldwide recession or depression.  The Corporation has already been tasked with providing relief to many 
Kentuckians who have been adversely affected by the pandemic, ranging from increased rental assistance 
to increased homelessness prevention to loan forbearance.  Although significant funding has been provided 
by numerous federal relief initiatives for the direct relief to those affected, it is unclear as to the impact on 
Corporate financial performance.   It is also unknown what additional impacts to Corporation operations the 
pandemic and reaction to the pandemic may have, any of which may affect future financial performance.  
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      52.  

 
 
The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the year end that occurred one year 
prior. 
 
This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.  However, until a 
full 10-year trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information 
is available. 
 
 
 
 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Corporation's proportion of the net pension liability 0.70% 0.79% 0.77% 0.74% 0.75% 0.79%

Corporation's proportionate share of the net pension liability 99,354$       106,832$     102,815$     84,211$   75,182$     70,519$     

Corporation's covered payroll 10,792$       11,885$       12,125$       12,192$   12,007$     13,011$     

Corporation's proportionate share of the net pension liability

   as a percentage of its covered payroll 920.63% 898.88% 847.96% 690.71% 626.15% 542.00%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 

   pension liability 13.66% 12.84% 13.30% 14.80% 18.83% 22.32%
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This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend is 
compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information is available. 
 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 
 
Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms: Since the prior measurement date, the demographic and economic assumptions that 
affect the measurement of the total net pension liability have been updated as follows and are reflected in the valuation performed as 
of the June 30 of the years listed below: 
 
2015: 

 The assumed investment rate of return was decreased from 7.75% to 7.50%. 
 The assumed rate of inflation was reduced from 3.50% to 3.25%. 
 The assumed rate of wage inflation was reduced from 1.00% to 0.75%. 
 The payroll growth assumption was reduced from 4.50% to 4.00%. 
 The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 

(multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females). 
 For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality table used is the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table 

projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 1 year for females).  For disabled members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled 
Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 4 years for males) is used for the period after disability 
retirement.  There is some margin in the current mortality tables for possible future improvement in mortality rates and that 
margin will be reviewed again when the next experience investigation is conducted. 

 The assumed rates of Retirement, Withdrawal and Disability were updated to more accurately reflect experience. 
 

2016: 
 The assumed investment rate of return was decreased from 7.50% to 6.75%. 

 
2017: 

 The assumed investment rate of return was decreased from 6.75% to 5.25%. 
 The assumed rate of inflation was reduced from 3.25% to 2.30%. 
 The salary increase assumption was reduced from 4.00% to 3.05%. 
 The payroll growth assumption was reduced from 4.00% to 0.00%. 

 
2018:  

 No changes in assumptions 
 
2019: 

 The salary increase assumptions changed from 3.05% average, including inflation to 4.40% average, including inflation. 
 The base retiree mortality tables were replaced with a KERS-specific mortality table developed using the actual mortality 

experienced for non-disabled retirees.  The mortality tables for disabled retires and active members were updated with 
Public Retirement Mortality tables.  

 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarially determined required contribution 4,796$      4,431$      4,880$      4,879$      3,760$      3,703$      

Actual pension contributions made (4,796)       (4,431)       (4,880)       (4,879)       (3,760)       (3,703)       

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             

Corporation's covered payroll 11,680$     10,792$     11,885$     12,125$     12,192$     12,007$     

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 41.06% 41.06% 41.06% 40.24% 30.84% 30.84%
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The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the year end that occurred one year 
prior. 
 
This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.  However, until a 
full 10-year trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information 
is available. 
 

2020 2019 2018

Corporation's proportion of the net OPEB liability 0.70% 0.79% 0.77%

Corporation's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 15,637$       18,604$       19,475$       

Corporation's covered payroll 10,792$       11,885$       12,125$       

Corporation's proportionate share of the net OEPB liability

   as a percentage of its covered payroll 144.89% 156.53% 160.62%

Plan f iduciary net position as a percentage of the total 

   OPEB liability 30.92% 27.32% 24.40%
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Employer contributions do not include the expected implicit subsidy.  
 
This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.  However, until a 
full 10-year trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information 
is available. 
 
 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 
 
Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms: Since the prior measurement date, the demographic and 
economic assumptions that affect the measurement of the total OPEB liability have been updated as follows 
and are reflected in the valuation performed as of the June 30 of the years listed below: 
 
 
2017: 

 The assumed investment rate of return was decreased from 6.75% to 6.25%. 
 The assumed rate of inflation was reduced from 3.25% to 2.30%. 
 The salary increase assumptions changed from 4.00% to 3.05% 
 The payroll growth assumption was reduced from 4.00% to 0.00%. 

 
2018:  

 No change in assumptions 
 
2019:  

 The salary increase assumptions changed from 3.05% average, including inflation to 4.40% average, 
including inflation. 

 The base retiree mortality tables were replaced with a KERS-specific mortality table developed using the 
actual mortality experienced for non-disabled retirees.  The mortality tables for disabled retires and active 
members were updated with Public Retirement Mortality tables.  

 
 

2020 2019 2018

Actuarially determined required contribution 982$             908$             999$             

Actual pension contributions made (982)              (908)              (999)              

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                  -$                  -$                  

Corporation's covered payroll 11,680$        10,792$        11,885$        

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 8.41% 8.41% 8.41%
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Bond Debt

Bond Recoveries Bond Debt Service

Proceeds of Principal Service Reserve Trust Redemption Combined

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 495$              -$                -$              -$                -$              -$                     495$             

Investment securities 6,155             6,255         10,017     33,902       5,322       825                 62,476          

Mortgage-backed securities 401                -                  -                2,286         -                -                       2,687            

Housing mortgage loans 16,976           -                  -                -                  728          -                       17,704          

Interfund accounts (6,296)            3,822         2,366       -                  161          -                       53                  

Total Current Assets 17,731           10,077       12,383     36,188       6,211       825                 83,415          

Noncurrent Assets
Investment securities -                      -                  -                97,140       -                -                       97,140          

Mortgage-backed securities 7,957             -                  -                45,372       -                -                       53,329          

Housing mortgage loans 285,083        -                  -                -                  40,465     -                       325,548       

Real estate owned and related receivables -                      -                  -                -                  -                -                       -                     

Total Noncurrent Assets 293,040        -                  -                142,512    40,465     -                       476,017       

Total Assets   310,771        10,077       12,383     178,700    46,676     825                 559,432       

    Deferred outflows related to pension 1,535             -                  -                -                  -                -                       1,535            

    Deferred outflows related to OPEB 548                -                  -                -                  -                -                       548               

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 2,083             -                  -                -                  -                -                       2,083            

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities 166                -                  -                -                  -                -                       166               

Accrued interest payable -                      -                  4,537       -                  -                -                       4,537            

Revenue bonds 15,700           -                  -                -                  -                -                       15,700          

Total Current Liabilities 15,866           -                  4,537       -                  -                -                       20,403          

Noncurrent Liabilities
Revenue bonds 273,902        -                  -                -                  -                -                       273,902       

Other noncurrent liabilities -                      -                  -                -                  -                -                       -                     

Net pension liability 16,562           -                  -                -                  -                -                       16,562          

Net OPEB liability 2,607             -                  -                -                  -                -                       2,607            

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 293,071        -                  -                -                  -                -                       293,071       

Total Liabilities   308,937        -                  4,537       -                  -                -                       313,474       

     Deferred inflows related to pension 1,417             -                  -                -                  -                -                       1,417            

Deferred inflows related to OPEB 764                -                  -                -                  -                -                       764               

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,181             -                  -                -                  -                -                       2,181            

     Restricted by revenue bond indenture 1,736$           10,077$    7,846$     178,700$  46,676$  825$               245,860$     

LIABILITIES

FUND NET POSITION

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
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Bond Debt

Bond Recoveries Bond Debt Service General

Proceeds of Principal Service Reserve Trust Revenue Redemption Combined

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals

Operating Revenues

Interest and fee income

Housing mortgage loans 16,800$   -$                -$              -$               900$      -$             -$                 17,700$    

Mortgage-backed securities 1,924       -                  -                466             -             -               -                   2,390        

Marketable securities 49            67               63             2,970          47          79             11                 3,286        

Net increase (decrease) in fair value of 

securities 2,571       -                  -                842             -             -               -                   3,413        

Other income 437          -                  -                -                 -             -               -                   437           

Total Operating Revenues 21,781     67               63             4,278          947        79             11                 27,226      

Operating Expenses

Interest on revenue bonds -              -                  11,502      -                 -             -               -                   11,502      

Provision for losses on loans 40            -                  -                -                 -             -               -                   40             

General and administrative 220          -                  -                -                 -             -               -                   220           

Mortgage loan servicers' fees 1,162       -                  -                -                 162        -               -                   1,324        

Total Operating Expenses 1,422       -                  11,502      -                 162        -               -                   13,086      

Operating Income (Loss)   20,359     67               (11,439)     4,278          785        79             11                 14,140      

Interfund Transfers (10,450)   2,191          12,444      -                 (2,644)    (79)           (5,804)          (4,342)      

Change in Fund Net Position 9,909       2,258          1,005        4,278          (1,859)    -               (5,793)          9,798        

Fund Net Position, Beginning of Year (8,173)     7,819          6,841        174,422      48,535   -               6,618 236,062    

Fund Net Position, End of Year   1,736$      10,077$        7,846$       178,700$     46,676$   -$               825$              245,860$   
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Bond Debt

Bond Recoveries Bond Debt Service General

Proceeds of Principal Service Reserve Trust Revenue Redemption Combined

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Interest income on loans 16,800$   -$                -$              -$               900$       -$           -$                17,700$    

Operating expenses (1,382)       -                  -                -                 (162)        -             -                   (1,544)       

Fundings of housing mortgage loans (196)          -                  -                -                 -               -             -                   (196)           

Repayments on housing mortgage loans 47,362      -                  -                -                 4,271      -             -                   51,633      

Other, net (663)          68               574           -                 321         -             (1)                299            

           Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 61,921      68               574           -                 5,330      -             (1)                67,892      

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Principal payments on revenue bonds -                 -                  (126,380) -                 -               -             -                   (126,380)   

Interest payments on revenue bonds -                 -                  (13,467)    -                 -               -             -                   (13,467)     

Interfund transfers - loan collections and investment income (72,336)    40,040       31,230     -                 (2,644)    (79)        (11)              (3,800)       

Interfund transfers - retirement of debt (64,055)    (37,849)     107,697   -                 -               -             (5,793)        -                  

          Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Noncapital 

             Financing Activities (136,391)  2,191         (920)         -                 (2,644)    (79)        (5,804)        (143,647)   

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of investments and mortgage-backed securities (15,296)    (42,094)     (41,695)    (328,725)  (2,788)    -             (117,764)    (548,362)   

Sales of investments and mortgage-backed securities 80,920      39,757       41,963     324,773    51           -             123,556     611,020    

Gain on the sales of investments and mortgage-backed securities 5,414        -                  -                10              -               -             -                   5,424         

Interest received on investments and mortgage-backed securities 2,189        78               78             3,942        51           79          13               6,430         

          Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing Activities 73,227      (2,259)        346           -                 (2,686)    79          5,805          74,512      

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents    (1,243)       -                  -                -                 -               -             -                   (1,243)       

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1,738        -                  -                -                 -               -             -                   1,738         

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year    495$         -$                -$              -$               -$            -$           -$                495$          

(Continued)
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Bond Debt

Bond Recoveries Bond Debt Service General

Proceeds of Principal Service Reserve Trust Revenue Redemption Combined

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net

   cash provided by operating activities
   Operating income (loss) 20,359$  67$             (11,439)$  4,278$     785$     79$        11$              14,140$   

    Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

            net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

             Provision for losses on loans 40            -                   -                 -                 -             -              -                    40             

             Interest expense on revenue bonds -                -                   11,502     -                 -             -              -                    11,502     

             Interest income on mortgage-backed securities (1,924)     -                   -                 (466)          -             -              -                    (2,390)      

             Interest income on marketable securities (49)           (67)              (63)            (2,970)      (47)         (79)         (11)               (3,286)      

         Net decrease in fair value of securities (2,571)     -                   -                 (842)          -             -              -                    (3,413)      

             Other income (437)         -                   -                 -                 -             -              -                    (437)         

             Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

               Fundings of housing mortgage loans (196)         -                   -                 -                 -             -              -                    (196)         

               Repayments on housing mortgage loans 47,362    -                   -                 -                 4,271    -              -                    51,633     

                       Other, net (663)         68               574           -                 321        -              (1)                  299           

                            Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities                                 61,921$  68$             574$         -$              5,330$  -$           (1)$               67,892$   
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 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN                          
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH   

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
 

Board of Directors 
Kentucky Housing Corporation 
Frankfort, Kentucky 
 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, business-type activities and each major fund of Kentucky Housing Corporation (the 
“Corporation”), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2020 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively compromise the Corporation’s 
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 2020.  
 

 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Corporation’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.  Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Corporation’s financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 Crowe LLP 

 
Louisville, Kentucky 
September 30, 2020 
 
 

 
 
 
 


